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NOTICE OF 30™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Members of ASA International India
Microfinance Limited will be held on Thursday, the 28th Day of July, 2020 at 3 P.M. (IST) through video conference
)in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA General Circular No.
20/2020, 14/2020 and 17/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, 8th April, 2020 and 13th April, 2020 respectively, to transact the
following businesses:

AGENDA
ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No.1 — Adoption of Audited Financial Statement of the Company.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020
together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Item No.2- Declaration of Dividend.
To inform that in order to build up reserve the Directors are not recommending any dividend against the equity shares.
Item No. 3 — Re-Appointment of a Director.

To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. Azim Hossain (DIN:01962641 ), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No.4 Borrowing Powers of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession to all the previous resolution(s) and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)( ¢) of
the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions, if any, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors of the Company ( hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall include any committee thereof for
the time being exercising the powers conferred on the Board by this resolution), to borrow from time to time, any such sum or
sums of monies , which together with moneys already borrowed by the Company, as they may deem appropriate for the purpose
of the Company from any Bank(s) , Public Financial Institution(s) ,non-banking finance companies, co-operative banks,
investment institutions, , mutual funds, and other bodies corporate or any Foreign Financial Institution(s) and/or any other entity
/ entities or authority / authorities either in Indian Rupees or equivalent thereof in any foreign currency(ies), whether by way of
advances, loans, issue of debentures/bonds and/or other instruments however, that the total borrowings may exceed the aggregate
of paid-up capital , free reserves and securities premium of the company, provided that the outstanding amount so borrowed at
any time (apart from temporary loans obtained from the company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) shall not exceed
an amount of INR 2000 Crores (Indian Rupees Two Thousand Crores Only)”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and Head- Treasury and Risk be and are hereby
severally authorized to borrow, negotiate, execute, amend, ratify any deed, document within the overall limit set.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary be and are hereby severally
authorized to file necessary forms with Registrar of Companies, Kolkata and to do or cause to do all such acts, things and deeds
and execute all such documents, undertaking as maybe considered necessary in connection with or incidental to the above”.”

Item No.5 Creation of Security on the Properties of the Company in favour of the Lenders:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession to all the previous resolution(s) and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereto from time to time) and other applicable
provisions, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to pledge, mortgage, hypothecate and/or charge all or any part
of the moveable or immovable properties of the Company and/or the whole or part of the undertaking of the Company, and/or
create a floating charge in all or any movable or immovable properties of the Company and/or the whole of the undertaking of
the Company, in favour of banks, financial institutions, investors or any other lenders (or any agent, security trustee, debenture
trustees or any other person acting on their behalf) to secure the amount borrowed by the Company or assign/transfer any third
party from time to time, and the due payment of the principal and/or together with interest, charges, costs, expenses and all other
monies payable by the Company or any third party in respect of such borrowings, provided that the maximum amount secured
by the moveable or immovable properties of the Company and/or the whole or part of the undertaking of the Company does not
exceed INR 2000 Crores (Rupees Two Thousand Crores Only) at any time.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and Head- Treasury and Risk be and is hereby
severally authorized to borrow, negotiate, execute, amend, ratify any deed, document within the overall limit set.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary be and are hereby
severally authorized to file necessary forms with Registrar of Companies, Kolkata and to do or cause to do all such acts, things
and deeds and execute all such documents, undertaking as maybe considered necessary in connection with or incidental to the
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above”.

Item No. 6. Private Placement of Non-Convertible Debentures:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 (the "Act™) read together with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, including any
modification, amendment, substitution or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force and the provisions of the memorandum
of association and the articles of association of the Company, the approval and consent of the members of the Company, be and
is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") to issue, and to make offer(s) and/or invitation(s) to
eligible persons to subscribe to, non-convertible debentures ((a) subordinated, (b) listed or unlisted, (c) senior secured, (d) senior
unsecured, (e) unsecured, (f) any others (as may be determined)) ("NCDs"), on a private placement basis, in one or more tranches,
for a period of one year from the date of passing of this resolution within the overall borrowing limits of the Company not
exceeding INR 700 Crores as approved by the members, from to time (Indian Rupees Seven Hundred Crores Only)."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board ( hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall include any committee
thereof for the time being exercising the powers conferred on the Board by this resolution) be and is hereby authorized and
empowered to arrange, settle and determine the terms and conditions (including without limitation, interest, repayment, security
or otherwise) as it may think fit of such NCDs, and to do all such acts, deeds, and things, and to execute all such documents,
instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to these resolutions.”

Item No.7. Related Party Transaction:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and all other provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder including any modifications or amendments or clarification thereon, if any,
and subject to such other approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of any authorities as may be necessary,
approval of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors to enter into a



contract(s)/arrangement(s)/transaction(s)with , a related party within the meaning of the aforesaid law, however that
contract(s)/transaction(s) so carried out shall at all times be on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of the
Company’s business.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to settle any
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise with regard to giving effect to the above Resolution, sign and execute
necessary documents and papers on an ongoing basis and to do and perform all such acts, deeds and things as may be
necessary or in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, desirable and to finalize any document and writings in
this regard.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers
conferred on it by or under this Resolution to any Committee of Directors of the Company or to any one or more
Directors of the Company or any other officer(s) of the Company as it may consider appropriate in order to give effect
to this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For ASA International India Microfinance Limited.

Date: June 26, 2020 S/d
Place: Kolkata Sadiyah Zaheer
Company Secretary

Membership No. 41640



NOTES:

1.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013with respect to Special
Business as set out in the notice is annexed.

In view of the COVID 19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its Circular dated 5th May, 2020
read with Circulars dated 8th April, 2020 and 13th April, 2020 (collectively referred to as ‘Circulars’), has
introduced certain measures enabling companies to convene their Annual General Meetings (AGM/ Meeting)
through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) and also send notice of the Meeting
and other correspondences related thereto, through electronic mode. In compliance with the said requirements
of the MCA Circulars, electronic copy of the Notice along with the Directors Report for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2020 required to be attached therewith(Collectively referred to as Notice) have been sent
only to those members whose e- mail id shall be registered with the Company through electronic means and
no physical copy of the Notice has been sent by the Company to any member.

In accordance with the aforementioned MCA Circulars, the members are requested to follow the following
instructions in order to participate in the Meeting through VC mechanism:
a. The login-id and password for joining the meeting has been separately provided along with this
Notice;
b. The facility for joining the Meeting shall be kept open 15 minutes before the time scheduled to start
the meeting i.e. 2.45pm IST and 15 minutes after the expiry of the said scheduled time i.e. till 5.15
PM IST;
c. Participation of single member shall only be allowed at a time;
d. Members are requested to e-mail at sadiyah@asaindiamf.com or call at +91 8336936205 in case of
any technical assistance required at the time of log in/ assessing/ voting at the Meeting through VC;
e. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which
Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be made
available only in electronic form for inspection during the Meeting through VC.

In terms of the aforesaid Circulars, the businesses set out in the Notice will be transacted by the members only
through through the e-voting system provided during the meeting while participating through VC facility.

All documents referred to in the notice and in the accompanying explanatory statements are open for inspection
at the registered office of the Company during the business hours from 10 am to 6 pm (1.S.T) on all working
days, except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays, up to the date of Annual General Meeting.

This notice is issued in accordance with the framework contained in General Circular number 14/2020 dated
8th April, 2020 and General Circular no 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 issued by The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.

The meeting will be held through Webex app and members/ authorized representatives/invitees attending the
meeting shall be required to install the app either in the mobile phone or laptop or desktop.

The Notice for this Meeting along with requisite documents and the Audited Financials for the financial year
ended 2019-20 shall also be available on the Company’s website.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 the following Explanatory Statement sets out material facts relating to
the business under item no 4, 5 and 6 of the accompanying notice dated June 26, 2020.

ITEMNO.4 &5

The shareholders of the company had, in their meeting on June 26™, 2020 has authorized the Board of Directors to borrow funds
from time to time for the business of the company up to an amount the aggregate outstanding of which should not exceed at any
given time INR 2000 Crores and to create charge on properties of the company to secure the repayments of the borrowings.

Being a non-banking finance company- micro financial institution that gives loans as a primary business, the Company needs to
be highly leveraged, with a high debt-equity ratio in order to remain viable and grow at a reasonable rate. Therefore, the borrowing
limit of the Company needs to be extended to INR. 2000 Crores.

Keeping in view the existing borrowings and additional fund requirement for meeting the capital expenditure for the
ongoing/future projects, capacity expansion, acquisitions and enhanced long term working capital needs of the Company, the
Board of the Directors be and is hereby authorized to borrow up to INR 2000 Crores and creation of security on the properties
of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the Shareholders by way of the resolution
is required to authorize the Board of Directors to borrow money up to the said limits and create security in respect thereof.

ITEM NO. 6

Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules,
2014 ("Prospectus and Allotment Rules™) deals with private placement of securities by a company. Rule 14(1) of the Prospectus
and Allotment Rules prescribes that in case of an offer or invitation to subscribe to securities, the Company shall obtain previous
approval of its shareholders/members ("Members™) by means of a special resolution. Proviso 3 of Rule 14(1) of the Prospectus
and Allotment Rules further prescribes that in case of the issue of non-convertible debentures ("NCDs") exceeding the limits
prescribed in Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, it shall be sufficient to obtain such previous approval only once in
a year for all the offers or invitations for such NCDs issued during a period of 1 (one) year from the date of passing of the
aforementioned special resolution.

In order to augment resources for on-lending by the Company, repayment/refinance of existing debt, working capital requirement,
purchase of assets, investments, general corporate purposes etc. the Company may invite subscription for
secured/unsecured/subordinated/senior, rated/unrated, listed/unlisted, redeemable NCDs, in one or more series/tranches on
private placement basis. The NCDs proposed to be issued, may be issued either at par or at premium or at a discount to face value
and the issue price (including premium, if any) shall be decided by the board of directors of the Company ("Board") on the basis
of various factors including the interest rate/effective yield determined, based on market conditions prevailing at the time of the
issue(s).

Pursuant to Rule 14(1) of the Prospectus and Allotment Rules, the following disclosures are being made by the Company to the
Members:

PARTICULARS OF THE | Rule 14(1) of the Prospectus and Allotment Rules prescribes that
OFFER INCLUDING DATE | where the amount to be raised through offer or invitation of NCDs (as
OF PASSING BOARD | defined above) exceeds the limit prescribed, it shall be sufficient if the
RESOLUTION company passes a previous special resolution only once in a year for
all the offers or invitations for such NCDs during the year.

In view of this, pursuant to this resolution under Section 42 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs
(whether  secured/unsecured/subordinated/senior,  rated/unrated,
listed/unlisted, redeemable (including market linked debentures)
NCDs) shall be decided from time to time, within the period of 1 (one)
year from the date of the aforementioned resolution. In line with Rule




14(1) of the Prospectus and Allotment Rules, the date of the relevant
board resolution shall be mentioned/disclosed in the private placement
offer and application letter for each offer/issue of NCDs.

KINDS OF SECURITIES
OFFERED AND THE PRICE
AT WHICH THE SECURITY
IS BEING OFFERED

Non-convertible debt securities/NCDs.

The NCDs will be offered/issued either at par or at premium or at a
discount to face value, which will be decided by the Board for each
specific issue, on the basis of the interest rate/effective yield
determined, based on market conditions prevailing at the time of the
respective issue.

BASIS OR JUSTIFICATION
FOR THE PRICE
(INCLUDING PREMIUM, IF
ANY) AT WHICH THE
OFFER OR INVITATION 1S
BEING MADE

Not applicable, as the securities proposed to be issued (in multiple
issues/tranches) are non-convertible debt instruments which will be
issued either at par or at premium or at a discount to face value in
accordance with terms to be decided by the Board, in discussions with
the relevant investor(s).

NAME AND ADDRESS OF
VALUER WHO
PERFORMED VALUATION

Not applicable as the securities proposed to be issued (in multiple
issues/tranches) are non-convertible debt instruments.

The specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs shall be decided from
time to time, within the period of 1 (one) year from the date of the
aforementioned resolution, provided that the amounts of all such
NCDs at any time issued within the period of 1 (one) year from the
date of passing of the aforementioned shareholders resolution shall not
exceed the limit specified in the resolution under Section 42 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

AMOUNT  WHICH THE
COMPANY INTENDS TO
RAISE BY WAY OF
SECURITIES

MATERIAL TERMS OF
RAISING OF SECURITIES,
PROPOSED TIME
SCHEDULE, PURPOSES OR
OBJECTS OF OFFER,
CONTRIBUTION BEING
MADE BY THE
PROMOTERS OR

DIRECTORS EITHER AS
PART OF THE OFFER OR

SEPARATELY IN
FURTHERANCE OF
OBJECTS; PRINCIPLE
TERMS OF ASSETS

CHARGED AS SECURITIES

The specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs shall be decided from
time to time, within the period of 1 (one) year from the date of the
aforementioned resolution, in discussions with the respective
investor(s). These disclosures will be specifically made in each private
placement offer and application letter for each offer/issue.




Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought in connection with the aforesaid issue of NCDs and they are requested to authorize
the Board to issue such NCDs during the year on a private placement basis, in one or more tranches, for a period of one year
from the date of passing of this resolution within the overall borrowing limits of the Company not exceeding INR 700 Crores as
approved by the members, from to time (Indian Rupees Seven Hundred Crores Only)."

None of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in this resolution except to the extent of their shareholding (if any) in the Company. The Board recommends the
passing of the resolution as special resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For ASA International India Microfinance Ltd.

Date: June 26, 2020 S/d
Place: Kolkata Sadiyah Zaheer
Company Secretary

Membership No. 41640



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the Director’s Report together with the audited
accounts of the company for the year ended 315t March, 2020.

1. Financial Results:

Key Highlights of financial performance of your company for the

sumarised below:

financial year 2019-20 is

PARTICULARS

2019-20 (INR)

2018-19 (INR)

Income from Operations

2,408,688,953

1,799,886,177

Other Income

51,086,641

17,875,903

Total Income

2,459,775,594

1,817,762,080

Less: Total Expenses

2,027,655,874

1,397,079,321

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 432,119,720 420,682,759
Tax Expense [Current Tax -Deferred Tax] 113,484,974 124,844,068
Profit/(Loss) for the Period 318,634,746 295,838,691
Appropriations - -
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 63,726,950 59,167,739

2. Brief Description of the Company’s working/State of Affairs during the year:

The operational highlights of your company for the year 2019-20 are:

Details: March 2020 March 2019 March 2018

No. of States 7 6 6
No. of Branches 410 320 273
No. of Employees 2,697 1,991 1,639
No. of Borrowers (INR in cr) 7,40,920 5,92,296 5,17,725
Asset under Management (INR in cr) 1,336.15 1,035.82 773.89

Your Company, being a Non-deposit taking NBFC-MFI continued in the business of providing
microfinance services. There has been no change in the business of providing microfinance services
during the year under review.

During the year the Company expanded its operations in the state of Odisha taking the total count
of states to seven : West Bengal, Assam, Tripura, Meghalaya, Bihar, Uttar Pradesh and Odisha.

During the year, the Company posted a profit after Tax (PAT) of INR 318,634,746/- as compared to
profit after tax of INR 295,838,691/- in the previous year. The revenue from operations has
increased from INR 1,799,886,177/- in the previous year to INR 2,408,688,953 /- in 2019-20.




The company also saw a growth in the number of customers from 5,92,296 In 2018-19 to
7,40,920 in 2019-20 which led to an increase in the AUM by 29% .

3. Share Capital:
During the year under review, there was an increase in the paid-up share capital of the Company.
Pursuant to which the Company had allotted 21,215 Equity Shares of INR 100/- each at a premium
of Rs.16,127/- per share to ASA International Holding and 2,355 equity Shares of INR 100/- each at
a premium of Rs.16,127/- per share to IDFC first Bank Limited on preferential basis in proportion
to their present shareholding in existing paid up share capital of the Company.

4. Dividend:

In order to retain Capital for further business expansion and given extant provision of Companies
Act, 2013, the Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year under review.

5. RBI Guideline and Capital Adequacy
As on 31st March, 2020, the Company is in compliance of the regulatory requirements of net owned
funds (‘NOF’) and Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Company was at 25.80% as on March 31st, 2020 as
against the minimum capital adequacy requirement of 15% by the Reserve Bank of India.

6. Internal Financial Control:
Your Company maintains appropriate systems of internal financial controls, including monitoring
procedures. Company policies, guidelines and procedures are well documented and provide for
adequate checks and balances and are meant to ensure that all transactions are authorized,

recorded and reported correctly.

Your company has a strong monitoring and reporting process resulting in financial discipline and
accountability. All efforts are being made to make the internal control systems more effective.

7. Credit Rating

The ICRA Limited has maintained the Bank loan rating to the company at BBB with stable outlook
while the rating for Non-Convertible Debentures were also at BBB.

CARE has maintained the grading of the company at M2+.
8. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):
Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors

The Company during the year has appointed Mr. A K M Aminur Rashid as a Non-Executive Director
who replaced Mr. Shafiqul Haque Choudhury.

Mr. Mohammed Azim Hossain (DIN: 01962641), Director of the Company is due to retire by
rotation at the ensuing AGM to be held in the month of July,2020 and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.



Key Managerial Personnel

During the year, Mr. Anjan Dasgupta-Managing Director, Mr. Subhrangsu Chakravarty-Chief
Financial Officer and Ms. Sadiyah Zaheer- Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) of the company.

Declaration of Independence

Your Company has two Independent Directors as on March 31, 2020, Ms. Dolly Guha and Mr. Ashim

Kumar Roy. Your Company has taken declarations from both the Independent Directors under 149

(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they satisfy all requirements of independence

envisaged in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act 2013.

9. Details of Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies.
10. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

In accordance with the provisions of the Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board

hereby submit its responsibility statement pursuant to the section 134(5) of the Companies Act,

2013 that-

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards readwith
requirements set out under Schedule III of the Act had been followed along with no material
departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 31st March 2020 and of the
profit and loss of the company as on that date;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) Clause (e) of section 134(5) is not applicable as the Company is not a listed Company.

(f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

11. Number of Board Meetings during the year 2019-20

The details of the Board and its Sub-committee meetings held during the year have been disclosed
in the Corporate Governance section, which is annexed to this report.



12. Auditors
a. Statutory Auditors:

As per Secton 139 of the Companies Act,2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co.,LLP ,Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 301088E/E300005), 22
Camac Street, 3™ floor, Block ‘C’ Kolkata-700016 has been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office till the conclusion of the 32th Annual General Meeting be held in the year
2022 i.e. for a period of five year.Pursuant to amendments in Section 139 of the Companies Act,
2013, the requirements to place the matter relating to such appointment for ratification by
members at every annual general meeting has been omitted with effect from 7t May, 2018.

The Report given by M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co.,LLP ,Chartered Accountants on the financial statement
of the Company for the year 2019-20 is part of the Audited Financials. The Auditors’ Report read
along with the Notes on the Financial Statements are self explanatory and does not call for any
further comments. There has been no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in
their Report.

During the year 2019-20, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143 (12) of the
Act, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the Act.

b. Secretarial Audit

According to the Notification dated 3™ January, 2020 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
provisions of Section 204 of the Companies for conducting Secretarial Audit applicable to the
company for the Financial Year ending 315t March, 2021.

However, before the notification during the year 2019-20, your company has complied with
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

c. Internal Audit

The company has its own Internal Audit team and are guided by the common Internal Audit policy
as followed at the group level. Every Branch is audited once in 6 months. The team is headed by the
Chief Internal Auditor sitting at head office.

13 Particulars of Loans or Guarantees or Investments:

The Company has not made any Investment, given guarantee and securities covered under section
186 of the Companies Act,2013 during the year under review, apart from first loan default
guarantee (FLDG) & short term parking of funds in liquid funds.

14. Extract of Annual Return:

In accordance with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of annual return in
the prescribed format (MGT-9) is appended as Annexure I to the Board’s Report.

15. Contracts and Arrangements with Related Parties:

All the related party transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year under review were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length
pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.The
particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties are
disclosed in notes forming part of the financial statements in the Audited financials.



16. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
outgo under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013

The provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts)Rule 2014 relating to conservation of Energy and technology absorption do not apply to
the Company. The Company has however used information technology extensively in its
operations.

There were 2 outflow of foreign exchange during the year under review.

16. Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board
Committees and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act,
2013.

Performance evaluation criteria for Board, Committees of the Board and Directors were approved
by the Nomination Committee. The main criteria on which the evaluations was carried out were
Director’s knowledge and expertise, specific competency and professional experience, board
engagement and time commitment.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the
Directors on the basis of the criteria such as board composition and structure, effectiveness of
Board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking input from the
Committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness
of committee meetings etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the
individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as contribution of the individual Director to
the Board and Committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful
and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition the Chairman was also
evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

17. Risk Management Policy:

The Company is exposed to episodical & other risks owing to the sector in which it operates. These
uncertainties create new business opportunities with inherent risks. A key factor in determining a
company’s capacity to create sustainable value is the level of risk that the company is willing to
take (at strategic and operational level) and its ability to manage them effectively. Many risks exist
in a company’s operating environment and they emerge on a regular basis. The Company’s risk
management processes focus on ensuring that these risks are identified timely and are reasonably
addressed. The Board of ASAI India provides oversight to the organization on all risk management
aspects of the organization. To ensure a proper vigilance and monitoring on the risks, a separate
role called Risk Management function is set up for overall review of the risk profile. The focus of the
role is to coordinate development of required policies and threshold and to ensure that the risks
which are not within the threshold be flagged and followed-up for their redressal.



18.0bligation of Company under The Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees.

Your Company has adopted a policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
and has an Internal Complaints Committee as “Committee on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace” (CPSHW) for implementation of the provisions of the said policy.

During the year Company has not received any complaints of sexual harassment from staff
members.

19. Deposits:

Your Company is a Non- Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company-Micro Financial
Institution registered under Section 45-IA with RBI with effect from 11% July,2018. Hence, the
Company has not accepted any public deposits in the past and does not hold any public deposits as
on date and will not accept any public deposits in future without obtaining written prior
permission of Reserve Bank of India.

20.Transfer to Reserve:

In accordance with the provision of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934, the
Company has transferred 20%, i.e. INR 63,726,950./- of the profit after tax to statutory reserve.

21.Material Changes and Commitments:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of this
report.

22.Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has established the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and the composition and function is mentioned thereof in the Corporate
Governance Report. The Board adopted the CSR Policy, formulated and recommended by the CSR
Committee.

During the year under review, as per the budget the Company spent on various programmes and
activities such as ASA Pathsala, Health camps, skill development trainings for women. The details of
the CSR Activities undertaken during the year are given in the report on CSR activities annexed to
this Report. Annexure III.

23.Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators, Courts and
Tribunals:

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future except as otherwise stated in the Audited
Financial Statements.



24. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund;

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years.
Therefore there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF).

25.Vigil Mechanism

The Company is in compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and has established a
whistle blower policy /Vigil Mechanism for the Directors and employees to report genuine
concerns or grievances about unethical behavior actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Company’s Code of Conduct Policy. The whistle blower policy of the Company is also available on
its website.

12. Acknowledgements:

Your Directors wish to place on record their gratitude for the sincere co-operation & support of the
various Regulatory Bodies and Government Agencies and look forward to their continued support
in the future. Your Directors also place on record their appreciation to the bankers, business
associates, investors, consultants, Clients, employees and all stakeholders for their unstinted
support and contributions towards the growth of the company. Our resilience to meet the
challenges was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, co-operation and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kolkata S/d S/d

Date:26.06.2020 Anjan Dasgupta Dolly Guha
Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 03314638 DIN:07671775



Annexure I

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

For the Financial Year ended 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U65921WB1990PLC231683

Registration Date

22/02/1990

Name of the Company

ASA International India Microfinance Limited

Category/Sub-category of the
Company

NBFC-MFI

.| Address of the Registered office &

contact details

Victoria Park, 4t Floor, GN-37/2, Sector -V, Salt Lake City,
Kolkata - 700 091

Phone No. +91(33) - 2357 8508/18;

Fax: +91(33) - 2357 8291;

Email Id: india@asaindiamf.com

.| Whether listed company

Unlisted

Name, Address & contact details
of the Registrar & Transfer Agent,
if any.

KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as
Selenium, Tower B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Hyderabad Rangareddi |,
Telangana- 500032

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

S. Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the| % to total turnover of the
No. | products/services Product/service company
1 Non Banking Financial Company - | 64990 100

Financial Services activities

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the|% to total turnover of the
No. | products/services Product/service company
1 ASA International Holding, Mauritius | 64990 100

- Financial Services (Microfinance)



mailto:india@asaindiamf.com

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

A. Category-wise Share Holding:

Category  of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of

the year[As on 31-March-2019]

No. of Shares held at the end of the
year[As on 31-March-2020]

Demat | Physical

Total

% of
Total
Share
S

Dema
t

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Cha
nge
duri
ng
the
year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

b) Central
Govt.

c) State Govt.

(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

29,995

15.31

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other

SUB-TOTAL:
(A) (1)

- 29,995

29,995

17.40

29,995

15.31

(2) Foreign

a) NRI -
Individuals

0.000

b) Other
Individuals

- 1

1

0.00

1

C) Bodies
Corporate

= 125,155

125,155

72.60

1463
65

146,366

74.70

d)Bank/FI

e)Any Other

SUB-TOTAL:
(A) (2)

- 125,156

125156

72.60

1,46,
365

146366

74.70

2.10

Total
shareholding
of Promoter
(A) = A1) +
A(2)

- 1,55,151

125156

90.0

1463
65

176362

90.01

B. Public
Shareholdin

g

1.




Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / FI

17,226

17,226

9.99

1958

19581

9.99

C) Central
Govt

d) State
Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h)  Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others
(specify)

SUB-TOTAL
1(B)(1)

17,226

17,226

9.99

1958

19581

9.99

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

0.00

0.00

b)
Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital up to
Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs 1 lakh

c) Others
(specify)

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate




Bodies

Foreign
Nationals

0.00

0.00 =

Clearing
Members

Trusts >

Foreign
Bodies - DR

SUB-TOTAL:
(B)(2)

0.00

0.00 =

Total Public
Shareholdin

g
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

17226

17229

1958

19584

9.99 =

C. Shares
held by
Custodian -
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total:
(A+B+(C)

17,226

122,393

1,35,983

100

17,2 | 155,154

26

1,72,380

100

(Note: includes shares held by nominee)

B) Shareholding of Promoter-

S | Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of the | %
N | Name of the year year change
No. of [ %  of | %of No. of | % of total | %of in
Shares | total Shares Shares Shares of | Shares sharehol
Shares Pledged / the Pledged / | ding
of the | encumber company | encumber | during
compan | ed to total ed to total | the year
y shares shares
1 ASA. International | 125,15 72.60% | - 1.46.365 | 74.70% ) 2.1%
Holding 0
Proswift
2 | Consultancy (P) | 29,995 | 17.40% | - 29,995 15.31% - (2.09%)
Ltd.
ASA International
3. NV 5 0.00 - 5 0.00 -
4 | Dirk M. Brouwer* 1 0.00% - 1 0.00% - -

(Note: * Nominee of Proswift Consultancy Private Limited)




D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

For Each of the Top 10

Shareholding at the

Cumulative

Shareholders beginning Shareholding during the
of the year Year
No. of | % oftotal | No. of | % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year 17,229 9.99% 19584 9.99%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters | - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 17,229 9.99% 19584 9.99%
E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding of each Directors and each Key | Shareholding at the | Cumulative

Managerial Personnel beginning Shareholding during the
of the year Year
No. of | %oftotal |No. of | % of total
shares shares of | shares shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters | - = = =
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 1 0.00% 1 0.00%

V. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not

due for payment.

Secured
. Loans Unsecured Depos ot
Particulars . . Indebtednes
excluding Loans its S
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 6024769295 550000000 0| 6574769295
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 86636617 3025685 0 89662302
Total (i+ii+iii) 6111405912 553025685 0| 6664431597
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition 5875389905 36308220 0| 5911698125




* Reduction 4338180218 36308220 0| 4374488438
Net Change 1537209687 0 0| 1537209687
Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount 7512781267 550000000 0| 8062781267
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 135834332 3025685 0 138860017
Total (i+ii+iii) 7648615599 553025685 0| 8201641284

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

S.N. | Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
Remuneration (INR) (INR)
MD WTD
1 Gross salary Mr. Anjan Dasgupta -
(a) Salary as per 62,86,801 - 62,86,801
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites -
u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary -
under  section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option -
3 Sweat Equity -
4 Commission -
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5 Others (please specify)- -
Total reimbursement as
Total (A) 62,86,801 - 62,86,801
Ceiling as per the Act - -

B. Remuneration to other directors: NIL

The Non-Executive Board of Directors expressed their willingness to waive of the sitting fees
against the Board Meetings. The sitting fees were however paid to the Independent Directors.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

S.N. | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount
Remuneration(INR) (INR)
1 Gross salary Company Secretary | Chief Financial Officer
Sadiyah Zaheer Subhrangsu Chakravarty
(a) Salary as per 7,62,765 | 27,17,240 34,80,005
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the

Income-tax Act, 1961




(b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5 Others (please specify)-
Total reimbursement as
Total (A) 762765 | 2717240 3480005
Ceiling as per the Act -
XII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: There was no

penalties/punishment/compounding of offences under the Companies Act, 2013 for the year
ending March 31, 2020.

Place: Kolkata
Date:26.06.2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S/d

Anjan Dasgupta
Managing Director
DIN: 03314638

S/d

Dolly Guha
Independent Director
DIN:07671775




Annexure - 11

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with

related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. Particulars Details
No.

a) | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship -

b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction -

c) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction -

d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | -
transaction including the value, if any

e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or | -
arrangements or transactions’

f) | Date of approval by the Board -

g) | Amount paid as advances, if any -

h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in | -
General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188




2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. | Particulars Details
a) | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Proswift Consultancy (P) Ltd
b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction House Rent
C) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Ongoing
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | As per the agreement
transaction including the value, if any
e) | Date of approval by the Board 20.05.2015
f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

Place: Kolkata
Date:26.06.2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S/d S/d
Anjan Dasgupta Dolly Guha
Managing Director Independent Director

DIN: 03314638

DIN:07671775



Annexure-III

SI.No | CSR Sector in | Projects or Amount Amount Cumulative | Amount
project which programs outlay spent on Expenditure | Spent
or the - Specify the (budget) | the (direct/
activity Projectis | State /Union project or | projects or through
identified covered | Territory programs | programs implementin;
where wise (in Rs.) agency)
the Project/ (inRs.) 1. Direct
Program was 2.0verheads
undertaken
1 Pathsala Education | West Bengal, UP, 4,800,000 5,572,677 NA | Direct

Bihar, Assam,
Tripura, Odisha, -
Alipurduar,
Araria,
Baleshwar,
Bankura,
Barddhaman,
Barpeta,
Birbhum,
Bongaigaon,
Cachar, Dakshin
Dinajpur,
Darjiling,
Darrang, Dhalai,
Dhubri, Gomati,
Hailakandi,
Howrah,
Jalpaiguri,
Jaunpur, Jorhat,
Kadamtala,
Kamrup, Kamrup
Metropolitan,
Karimganj,
Katihar, Khowai,
Kishanganj, Koch
Bihar, Maldah,
Murshidabad,
Nadia, Nagaon,
Nalbari, North
Twenty Four
Parganas,
Paschim
Medinipur,
Purba
Medinipur,
Purnia,
Sepahijala,
Sonitpur, South




Tripura, South
Twenty Four

Parganas,
Unakoti,
Varanasi, West
Tripura
Solar Lamp NA NA 250,000 0 0 | NA
Distribution
Skill Education | West Bengal - 600,000 7,490 345,211 | Direct
Development South 24 (from fin
Parganas year 18-19)
Health Camp | Health West Bengal, UP, 1,425,000 1,996,323 NA | Direct

Bihar, Assam,
Tripura, Odisha,
Meghalaya-
ALIPURDUAR,
ARARIA,
BARPETA,
BIRBHUM,
BONGAIGAON,
BURDWAN,
CACHAR,
Coochbehar,
DAKSHIN
DINAJPUR,
DARJILING,
DARRANG,
DHALA],
DHUBRI,
GOMAT]I,
HAILAKANDI,
Jalpaiguri,
KAMRUP,
KAMRUP
METROPOLITAN,
KARIMGAN],
KISHANGAN],
Kolkata,
MALDAH,
MURSHIDABAD,
NADIA,
NAGAON,
NORTH
TRIPURA,
NORTH TWENTY
FOUR
PARGANAS,
PASCHIM
MEDINIPUR,
PURNIA,




SEPAHIJALA,
SONITPUR,
SOUTH
TRIPURA, South
TWENTY FOUR
PARGANAS,
UTTAR
DINAJPUR,
VARANAS],
WEST TRIPURA

In-house
Health
Check-up

Health

NA

795,000

NA

Eye Camp

Health

West Bengal, UP,
Bihar, Assam,
Tripura, Odisha,
Meghalaya-

ALIPURDUAR,
ARARIA,
BANKURA,
BARPETA,
BIRBHUM,
BONGAIGAON,
CACHAR,
CHANDAULI,
DAKSHIN
DINAJPUR,
DARJILING,
SDHALAI,
DHUBRI, EAST
KHASI HILLS,
HAILAKAND],
HUGLI,
JALPAIGUR],
JORHAT,
KAMRUP
METROPOLITAN,
KARIMGAN],
KISHANGAN]J,
KOCH BIHAR,
MALDAH,
MURSHIDABAD,
NADIA, NAGAON,
NALBAR],
NORTH
TRIPURA,
NORTH TWENTY
FOUR
PARGANAS,
PASCHIM

1,700,000

1,414,746

Direct




MEDINIPUR,

PURNIA,
SEPAHIJALA,
SONITPUR,
SOUTH
TRIPURA,
SOUTH TWENTY
FOUR
PARGANAS,
WEST TRIPURA
7 Support to Donation | West Bengal, 60,000 52,466 0 | Direct
NGO/ home Maharastra
Donation
8 Emergency Natural Assam, 300,000 520,279 0 | Direct
Support Calamity | Odisha(through
(Flood CM fund)-
Relief) KAMRUP
METROPOLITAN,
DHUBR],
BARPETA,
KAMRUP, and
Odisha CM fund
9 Wheelchair Health West Bengal 500,000 1,016,400 0 | Implementing
distribution/ Agency
other kind of
support for
the specially
abled/
Ambulance
10 Arsenic Free | Water & West Bengal - 700,000 88,248 634,164 | Implementing
Water plant/ | Sanitation | North 24 (from fin | agency and
Deep Tube Parganas year 18-19) | direct (regular
well/ maintenece)
Community
Toilet
11 CSR All All 100,000 0 NA | NA
Documentary
12 COVID COVID West Bengal, UP, 0 300,157 0 | Direct
related: Soap Bihar, Assam,
distribution Tripura, Odisha,
to borrower Meghalaya
groups
13 COVID COVID NA 0 100,000 0 | Direct
related:
donation to
PM Fund
14 Women's Health West Bengal - 0 13,000 0 | Implementing
health Bankura agency




program in

collaboraiton
with Lions
Club
15 Scholarship | Education | West Bengal, UP, 0 134,775 0 | Direct
provided to Tripura, Assam
the brilliant
students
secured
more than
80% in the
board
examination
16 Seminar Admin West Bengal - 0 2,000 0 | Direct
registraion Cost Kolkata
on CSR
17 Field visit Admin West Bengal, 0 14,303 0 | Direct
and CSR Cost Delhi - North 24
related Parganas, South
conference 24 Parganas,
Kolkata, Delhi
Total 11,230,000 11,232,864 979,375




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company believes in ethical and effective way to drive its business in a well designed and
directed manner so as to deliver its goals and objective in the highest standards. ASA has always
believed in adhering to its norms and the governance in the entity is a non-negotiable factor. At ASA
, we ensure that we evolve and follow not just the stated corporate governance guidelines.. The
Company is dedicated and committed to ensure high standards of transparency and accountability
in all its activities. The best management practices and high level of integrity in decision making is
followed to ensure long wealth generation and creation of value for all the stakeholders.

The company recognizes that good corporate governance is a continuous exercise. Adherence to

transparency, accountability, fairness and ethical standards are an integral part of the Company’s
function. The Company’s structure, business dealings, administration and disclosure practices are
aligned to good corporate governance philosophy.

Code of Conduct

The company has a strong code of conduct framework for all its employees which is based on strong
fair, transparent ad ethical governance practices.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Size and composition of the Board

The Company has a broad-based Board of Directors, constituted in compliance with the Section 45-1A
of the RBI Act, 1934 and Companies Act, 2013, and in accordance with good corporate governance
practices. The Board functions either as a full Board or through various committees constituted to
over- see specific operational areas. As on March 31, 2020, the Board comprised of Eight Directors,
two of whom are Independent Directors, One Nominee Director, One Promoter Director, One
Executive Director and Three Non-Executive Directors. Five of our directors are foreign nationals.
The Company also has a Woman Director on Board, thus fulfilling the criteria set by the Companies
Act, 2013.

Board Meetings

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Board met nine times, i.e; June 06, 2019, June 27, 2019,
05.08.2019,02.09.2019, 19.09.2019, 26.09.2019, 30.09.2019, 11.11.2019, 21.01.2020. The Board
also approved various businesses during circular resolution, based on the urgency. The period
between any consecutive Board Meetings never exceeded the maximum gap of 120 days, as
prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards of ICSI. The attendance of
Directors of the Company at the Board meetings held during the year is given below:

SL.No Name of the Members No. of Meetings Attended Last AGM
attended held on 26.09.2019
1 Dirk Machgielis Brouwer 3 Yes

2 Anjan Dasgupta 10 Yes




3 Md Shafiqual Haque Choudhury* See the note No
4 | Dolly Guha 10 Yes

5 Mr. Ashim Kumar Roy 1 No

6 Ashish Singh 9 Yes

7 Mohammed Azim Hossain 8 Yes

8 Md Enamul Haque 10 Yes

9 Mr. A KM Rashid** 7 Yes

*Mr. Shafiqual Haque Chaudhury resigned w.e.f 27.06.2019
**Mr. A KM Rashid was appointed as Additional Director w.e.f 27.06.2019

Mr. Enamul Haque was considered as a director to retire by rotation and subsequently was
reappointed by the members at the Annual General Meeting held on 26.09.2019, Mr. Mohammed
Azim Hossain (DIN: 01962641), Director of the Company is due to retire by rotation at the ensuing
AGM to be held in the month of July,2020 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Your Board is of the opinion that continued association of Mr. Mohammed Azim Hossain (DIN:
01962641) with the Board will be of immense benefit to your Company and, therefore, recommends
his re-appointment.

Mr. Shafiqul Haque Chaudhury ceased to be Director of the Company with effect from 27 June,2019.
Your Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable contributions made by Mr.
Choudhury during his tenure as Director on the Board of your Company.

Meeting of the Independent Directors

Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors met on January 21,
2020 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and Members of the Management. The
Independent Directors, inter alia, evaluated the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and
the Board of Directors as a whole taking into account views of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors and discussed aspects relating to the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of
information between the Company, the Management and the Board.

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD- COMPOSITION AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2020.

The Board has constituted various committees consisting of Executive and Non-Executive Directors
of the Company to meet various mandatory requirements of the Act as well as to perform other
critical functions. Currently, the Board has 6 (six) committees: Audit Committee, Risk Committee,
CSR Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, IT Strategy Committee, Corporate
Governance Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to all the Committees of the
Board.



1. Audit Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a qualified and independent Audit
Committee that acts as a link between the management, the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the
Board.

The terms of the reference of the Audit Committee covers all matters specified in section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The terms of the reference broadly include review of internal audit reports
and action taken reports, assessment of the efficacy of the internal control systems/financial
reporting systems and reviewing of the adequacy of the financial policies and practices followed by
the Company. The Audit Committee also looks after the compliance with the legal and statutory
requirements, the quarterly and annual financial statements and related party transactions and
report its finding to the Board

Composition, Meeting and Attendance
The composition of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

As on 31st March, 2020 the Committee comprised of two independent directors, one non-executive
director, all of whom are financially literate and have relevant finance exposure. The Managing
Director and Chief Financial Officer are the permanent invitees to the meetings of the committee.
The Chairperson of the Committee is an Independent Director. The Committee also invited the
representatives of Internal Auditors for obtaining valuable guidance from their expertise in best
practices in Internal Audit. The Audit Committee met three times during the financial year on June
27,2019, September 26, 2019, and January 20, 2020.

All the recommendations of the Committee were adopted by the Board.

Attendance of Directors:

SL.No Name of the Members No. of Meetings attended
1 Mr. Ashim Kumar Roy 1
2 Ms. Dolly Guha 3
3 Mr. Azim Hossain 3

2. Risk Management Committee

Periodic assessment to identify the risk areas are carried out and management is briefed on the
risks in advance to enable the company to control risk through a properly defined plan. The Terms
of reference broadly include the risks that are taken into account while preparing the annual
business plan for the company, prevailing business risk and actions taken to manage them, the TOR
also lays down the future risk strategy and risk appetite of the company . The company has in place
a risk management policy which provides an overview of the principles of the risk management of
the company. The policy facilitates in identification of risks at appropriate time and ensures
necessary steps to be taken to mitigate the risks.



Composition, Meeting and Attendance

The composition of the Risk Management Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
As on 31st March, 2020 the Committee comprised of two independent directors , one nominee
director, three non-executive directors and one executive Director .The other directors are invited

to attend the Risk Committee meetings as when required. The Risk Committee met three times
during the financial year i:e; on June 27, 2019, September 26, 2019 and January 20, 2020.

Attendance of Directors:

S1.No Name of the Board Members No. of Meetings attended
1 Mr. Ashim Kumar Roy 1
2 Ms. Dolly Guha 3
3 Mr. Azim Hossain 3
4 Mr. Dirk M. Brouwer 2
5 Mr. Enamul Haque 3
6 Mr. Ashish Singh 3
7 Mr. Anjan Dasgupta 3

3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Your company is committed towards its society. Independently and also in partnership the company
taken many initiatives towards betterment of the society. The CSR expands all over India and it has
brought a positive change in the society. The main focus is on education, healthcare and finance, the
three main aspects for development.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee monitors the overall CSR Activities of the Company. It
provides guidance on various areas where CSR activities can be carried out. The Committee is
headed by an Independent Director.

Composition, Meeting and Attendance

The composition of the CSR Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

As on 31st March, 2020 the Committee comprised of one independent director, one Non-Executive
director, one Executive director and one nominee director. The other directors are invited to attend
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meetings as when required. The Committee met
three times during the year, i:e; June 27, 2019, September 26, 2019 and January 20, 2020.

The composition of the CSR Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Act.



Attendance of the Directors:

SI.No Name of the Members No. of Meetings attended
1 Ms. Dolly Guha 3
2 Mr. Enamul Haque 3
3 Mr. Ashish Singh 3
4 Mr. Anjan Dasgupta 3

4.Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board is responsible for ensuring that the
directors appointed would have appropriate skills to support the functioning of the company. The
terms of reference of the Committee includes reviewing the candidature of the Directors and
ensures that they are fit and proper as per the guidelines of RBI and Companies Act, 2013.
determining the sitting fees to be paid to the non-executive directors of the company, to carry out
evaluation of every director’s performance. In case the company determines the use of services of
the Directors for specific assignments then the company would compensate the directors
additionally for their professional services and such compensation would be determined by the
Board after being recommended by the Committee.

Composition, Meeting and Attendance
The composition of the NR Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

As on 31st March, 2020, the Committee comprised of one independent director, one Non-executive
Director and one investor director. The Managing Director and The Chief Financial Officer are the
permanent invitee to the meetings of the committee. The other directors are invited to attend the
Nomination and Remuneration committee meetings as when required. The Committee met three
times during the year, i:e; June 27,2019, September 26, 2019 and January 20, 2020.

Attendance of Directors:

SL.No Name of the Members No. of Meetings attended
1 Ms. Dolly Guha 3
2 Mr. Dirk M. Brouwer 3

3 Mr. Ashish Singh 3




5.IT Strategy Committee

Your company has constituted IT Strategy Committee in compliance with RBI Master Direction
dated June 08, 2017. The committee’s roles include approving IT strategy and policy documents and
ensuring that the management has put an effective strategic planning process in place; ascertaining
that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the IT delivers value to
the business ;ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are
acceptable; Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to
achieve strategic goals and provide high-level direction for sourcing and use of IT resources;
ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining NBFC’s growth and becoming aware about
exposure towards IT risks and controls.

Composition, Meeting and Attendance
The Committee met one time during the FY 19-20 on January 21, 2020.

As on 31st March, 2020, the committee comprised of one Independent Director, Chief Technology
Officer, Chief Information Officer. The Managing Director and The Chief Financial Officer are the
permanent invitee to the meetings of the committee. The other directors are invited to attend the
committee meetings as when required.

SL.No Name of the Members No. of Meeting attended
1 Ms. Dolly Guha 1
2 Mr. Manoj Acharya (CTO) 1
3 Mr. Suvankar Mondal (Acting-CIO) 1

6. Corporate Governance Committee

Corporate Governance refers to, but not limited to ,a set of laws, regulations and good practices and
systems that enable an organization to perform efficiently an ethically to generate long term wealth
and create value to its stakeholders. Corporate Governance requires everyone to raise their level of
competency and capability to meet the expectations in managing the enterprise and its resources
optimally with prudent ethical standards.

Your company has constituted a corporate governance committee.

Composition, Meeting and Attendance

As on 31st March, 2020, the committee comprised of one Independent Director, two Non-Executive
Directors. The committee met one during the FY 19-20 on January 21, 2020.

SL.No Name of the Members No. of Meeting attended

1 Ms. Dolly Guha 1

2 Mr. Enamul Haque 1




3 Mr. Azim Hossain 1

Remuneration paid to the Directors.

Out of the total eight directors, one is an executive director. The remuneration payable to this
director is determined by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. This is subject to the approval of the Board. The non-executive directors do not draw
any remuneration from the Company. The two Independent directors of the company are paid the
sitting fees for attending Board and various committee meetings.

There was no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the
company during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020.

Extraordinary General Meetings of the Company
The Company held one Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company on 04 September, 2019.

Attendance of Directors:

SL.No Name of the Members Meetings attended
1 Dirk Machgielis Brouwer v
2 Anjan Dasgupta v
3 Md Shafiqual Haque Choudhury* See the note below
4 | Dolly Guha v

5 Mr. Ashim Kumar Roy --

6 | Ashish Singh v

7 Mohammed Azim Hossain --

8 Md Enamul Haque v

9 Mr. A K M Rashid** v

The Company during the year has appointed Mr. A K M Aminur Rashid as a Non-Executive Director
who replaced Mr. Shafiqul Haque Choudhury on 27.06.2019.




Meeting of Independent Directors

As mandated by Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. Keeping in
line with the said provision, the meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on
January 21, 2020. The directors:

1. Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole.
2. Discussed among other matters, the performance of the company and risks faced by it, the

flow of information to the Board, performance of the executive members of the Board.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has an established mechanism for Directors, Employees, Clients, partners, investors
or the public at large to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud,
violation of the code of conduct or ethics policy. It also provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of Directors, Employees, Clients, partners, investors who avail of the mechanism. The
company affirms that no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee. The company
has formulated a policy of the vigil mechanism that any personnel may raise reportable matters at
an early date after becoming aware of the same. To ensure the highest level of good governance,
ASA'’s overall whistleblower policy has been determined in terms of the organizations’ core values.

Board Member Evaluation

Pursuant to section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
specified the manner for performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Individual
Directors. Accordingly, the Board has carried out the performance evaluation of its own performance
and that of its committees as well as evaluation of performance of the Directors individually. The
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was also carried out by the entire Board.

The performance evaluation of the Board, its Chairperson and the Non-Independent Directors were
carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board expressed its satisfaction with the evaluation
process and results thereof.

Disclosure under The Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal ) Act, 2013

The company has in place a POSH Policy (Prevention of Sexual Harassment) in line with the
requirement of The Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees)
are covered under this policy. The policy is also uploaded on the website of the Company. During the
year under review, no complaint /case was filed or was pending for redressal pursuant to Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Company Registration details



The Company with its Registered office in in Kolkata, West Bengal and operates in seven
geographies at present, West Bengal, Assam, Bihar, Uttar Pradesh, Meghalaya ,Tripura and Odisha.
CIN: U65921WB1990PLC231683

RBI registration no: B-05.07083

Materially significant related party transactions

No materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the
interests of the company at large were reported during FY 19-20.

Branch Offices

The Company had 410 branches as on March 31, 2020 across seven states within India.
Address for correspondence

Shareholders/investors may write to the Company Secretary at the following address:

The Company Secretary
Victoria Park, 4th Floor, GN 37/2,
Sector-V, Salt Lake City, Kolkata-700091, West Bengal

Debenture Trustee Details

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited and Catalyst Trusteeship Limited has been appointed as the
Debenture Trustees of the Company.

Debenture holders may write to the Debenture Trustee at the following address:

1.IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited, 2.Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Address:Asian Building, Ground Floor,17, R. GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right),
Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,Mumbai - 400 Paud Road, Pune, Maharashtra- 411038
001. Maharashtra

Means of Communication with other stakeholders

All important information relating to the Company and its performance, including financial results,

are posted on the website of the Company: http://asaindia.in.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ASA International India Microfinance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Sstatements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ASA International India
Microfinance Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31
5020, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 as amended ("the Act’) in the manner s0 required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the standards on
auditing (SAs), as specified under cection 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the ‘suditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
code of Ethics. We pelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 32 to the accompanying financial statements, which describes
the economic and cgcial disruption as a result of the coviD-19 pandemic of the
Company's business and financial metrics, including the Company's estimates towards
provisions of loan to customers and that such estimates may be affected by the severity

and duration of the pandemic. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director's Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our suditor’'s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting

3
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forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)()
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
LII‘tEEI‘taiI'It{.F exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate,
to modify our apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reparting of the Company with reference to these financial statements and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure 2" to this report;

{g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020
has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 29 to the financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA| Firm Registration Number: 3010032E/E300005

G)QWW%&Q.\

per Bhaswar Sarkar

Partner

Membership Number: 055596
UDIN: 20055596AAAABUS5441

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: June 26, 2020
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING YREPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN
DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF ASA INTERNATIONAL INDIA MICROFINANCE LIMITED
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(i (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the infarmation and explanations given by the management, there
are no immovable properties, included in fixed assets of the Company. Accordingly,
the requirements under paragraph 3(i)c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upaon.

(i The Company's business does not involve inventories. Accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

(iip  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) (a), (b) and
(¢c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and
hence not commented upon. :

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable
and hence not commented upon.

¢(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business
of sale of any goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(vii) (&) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

\Z
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Though there has been a slight delay in a few cases for provident fund which could
not be deposited due to reasons mentioned in note no. 31 of the financial
statements.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
goods and service tax, cess and other <tatutory dues which were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable, are as follows:

[ | I | Periodto | | Dateof Remarks, if |
| Mame of the Nature of | Amount | which the | Due | payme any |
statute dues | Rs) | amount | date | nt | |
S——— | omletes L
| Employees Provident —l_ll,ErE.lﬁB | April- —I_Mayf- April | Rs. |
Provident Fund | Fund | | August | Septe |14, | 3,66,394 |
and | 2019 mber ‘ 2020 paid

| Miscellaneous | ‘ | 2019 (for reason |
Provisions Act, | ‘ | | | | of non- |

| 1952 | | payment
| | | | refer note |
| | | | | | 31 of the |

| | financial
L | |____|__.__i5'ﬂem_ent_ﬂ|

(e) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, service tax,
goods and service tax and cess on account of any dispute are as follows:

| ‘ T Period to |F L |
Name of the | Nature of | Amount {*) | which the :::u Wikkre
| statute dues | €4 | amount | dispute Is |
ending
[ (ST sl S
The Income Tax | Income 8,09,99,175 | A.Y. Commissioner
| Act, 1961 Tax | | 2011-12 ! of Incormne- tax |
| | | | & ALY | (Appeal)
(| " R __|Zeiad || -

(*) net of Rs. 1,65,35,485 paid under protest

(d) In respect of sub clauses (vii) (a) to (vi) (c) above, the Company did not have any
dues towards sales tax, custom duty, value added tax and excise duty, during the
year.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing
to a financial institution, bank or dues to debenture holders.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

ccording to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer. Accordingly, clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

Money raised by the Company by way of term loans / debt instruments were applied
for the purpose for which those were raised, though idle/ surplus funds were
gainfully invested in fixed deposits/ liquid assets, pending for the purpose for they
were raised,

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no material fraud by the
Company or by its employees or officers has been noticed or reported during the
year except for instances of cash embezzlements by certain employees of the
Company aggregating to an amount of Rs. 13,72,579 and out of which Rs. 5,15,386
has been recovered,.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year.
According to the information and explanations given by the management, we report
that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised.

According to information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the
Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
iCAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

“——=0deon

per Bhaswar Sarkar

Partner

Membership Number: 055596
UDIN: 20055596 AAAABUS441

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: June 26, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ASA INTERNATIONAL INDIA MICROFINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ASA
International India Microfinance Limited (“the Company') as of March 31, 2020 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With
Reference to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control aver financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadeguate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate.



S.R.Bariisoi& Co. LLP
fhﬁtﬁfﬁtﬁsﬁcaumdnts

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020 based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For S.R, Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

%%M

per Bhaswar Sarkar

Partner

Membership Number: 055596
UDIN: 20055596AAAABUS441

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: June 26, 2020



ASA International India Microfinance Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.} (Rs.]
I. Eguity and liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 1,95,95,000 1,72,38,000
Resarves and surplus 4 2,12,85,59, 364 1,43,08,11,230
2,14,91,54,364 1,44,80,49,230
Non-current liabilities
Long-tarm bormrawings 5 5,25,82,17,184 4.06.48 91 898
Lang-term pravisions 6 17,56,80,545 5 50,20, 086
5,43,38,97,733 4,11,99,11,984
Current liabilities
Shart-tarm horrawings 7 7 1,213
Trade payables
Tawl outstanding dues of micre enterprises and
small entarprises .
lotzl outstarding ducs of creditors ather than
micra entarprises and smzll enterprises & 1,14,9%,867 1,54,58,146
Otnar current fzhilities 9 3,18,93,15,124 2,958,20,43,809
Snart-term provisions & 8,20,49 445 9,42.09 091
3,28,28,68,438 3,07,17,12,259
Total 10,86,59,20,535 8,63,96,73,473
II. Asset
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 104 3,39,53,055 3,13,08,972
Intangible assets 10B 34,23,614 48,73,678
Deferred tax azsats 11 B,76,50,604 4.10,12,742
Loans and advances 12 1,94,37,.60,404 71,08,04,640
Other assets 13 15,37,82,005 22,45,38,998
2,24,26,00,774 1,01,25,37,030
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 14 B2,.06,09,175 1,26,83,74,473
Lozrs and advances 12 7.38,81,.56,519 6,07,41,98,649
Other assats 13 41,45,45,067 28,45,63,321
8,62,33,10,761 7.62,71,36,443
Total 10,86,59,20,535 8,63,06,72,473
Summary of sigrificant accounting policics 2.1

A5 Ser cur report of even data

For S.R.Batlibol & Co. LLP
Charteres Accountants
Firm Registration No.301003E/EZQ0005

A Bosisrcittans

per Bhaswar Sarkar
Parinar
Membership No.: 055596

)

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 26, 2020

Tna accompanying notes are 2n integral part of the financial statements.

Fl;',f‘"iim_'.l on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ASA International India Microfinance Limited

Managing Director
DIN 03314638
Satala
Subhrangsu Chakravarty
Chief Financial Offcar

Sadiyah Zaheer
Company Secretary




ASA International India Microfinance Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the yvear ended March 31, 2020

Year ended March

Year ended March 31,

As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP
Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accountants

RS,

per Bhaswar Sarkar

Partner
Membership No.: 055596

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 26, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Motes 31, 2020 2019
{Rs.) (Rs.}

1, Income

Revenue from operations 15 2,40,86,88,553 1,79,98,86,177

Other income 16 5,10,86,641 1,78,75,903
Total revenue 2,45,097,75,594 1.81,77,62,080
I1. Expenses

Employvee benelils expense 17 51,84,81,101 36,61,06,737

Finance costs 18 1,10,50,70,929 7B8,44,00,790

Depreciation and amortisation expense 19 2,13,67,469 1,78,50,389

Other expenses 20 23,49,90,658 17,83,10,312

Provislons and write-offs 21 14,77,43,719 5,04,12,092
Total expenses 2,02,76,55,B76 1,39,70,79,320
Profit before tax {(1I1)=(I)-(II) 43,21,19,718 42,06,82,760
Tax expense (IV)

Current tax 14,01,22,835 13,52,84,423

Deferred tax credit [2,66,37,865) {1,04,40,355)
Total tax expenses 11,34,84,974 12,48,44,068
Profit for the year (III)-(IV) 31,86,34,744 29,58,38,692
Earning per share (EPS) 22

Mominal value of share 100.00 100.00

Basic 1,722.93 1,854 80

Diluted 1,722.83 1,.954.80
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ASA International India Microfinance Limited

\ 2

M

|,
_.L/%’(ig
Anjar{nas upta

Managing'D'r'rEﬁtGr
DIN 03314638

SN b Zalr

et
Subhrangsu Chakravar
Chief Financial Officer

DIM: 07671775

Sadiyah Zaheer
Company Secretary




ASA International India Microfinance Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Year ended March | Year ended March 31,
Particulars 31, 2020 2019
{Rs.)} {Rs.)
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Profit before tax 43,21,19,718 42,06,82,760
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,13,67,469 1,78,50,389
Pravisians and writa-offs 14,77,45,71% 5,04,12,052
Gain from sale of investments (1,90,71,783) {1,25,38,B20)
Excess provisian for litigation written back (1,86,63,184) =
Liabilites written back (93,42,767) =
Pravision for service tax = 55,868,861
Operating profit before working capital changes 55,61,55,172 48,19,93,282
Movements in working capital:
Increase In leans and advances (2,60,31,75,056) 11,75,99,74,542)
Increase in cther assets [2,88,55,545) (13,683,60,644)
Increase In pravisions 18,37,36,235 4,35,23,475
Decrease) (increase) in margln meney deposits {net) 3,H8,56,443 (14 38,61,638)
Increase) (decreasa) in other current liabilities (6,20,28 094 17,3532 219
Cash used in operations (1,99,53,15,245) (1,34,07 47,847)
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) (14 62,32 861) (16,32,58,164}
Met Cash flow used in operating activities (A) ({2,14,15,48,106) (1,50,40,46,011)
B. Cash flow from investing activities :
Furchase of praperty, plant and equipments (2,26,03,487) (2,31,87,853)
Proceeds fram purchase and sale of investments (net) 190,71 783 1,30,56,308
Met cash flow used in investing activities (B) {35,31,704) {1,00,91,455)
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Repayment of short-term borrowings [net) - (23,26,91,353)
Repayment of cash credit facility {net) (1,213} (18,02,582}
Praceeds from long-term borrowings 3,19,78,89 368 2,63,01,96,907
Repayment of lang-term borrowings (2,44,32,09,383) (2,5570,94,910%
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 38,24,70,390 38,92,87,753
Proceeds from issue of non-canvertible debentures B0,00,00,000 1,65,66,66,600
Repayment of non-convertible debentures (6,566,608, 8007 (8,33,33 200}
Net Cash flow generated from financing activities (C) 1,87,04,82,362 1,80,12, 29,215
MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B4C) (27,45,97,448) 28,70,91,749 |
Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the year 92,63,35,695 63,52,43,946
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 14) 85,17,38,247 92,63,35,605

P

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1}

As per our report of even date

For 5.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo.201003E/E300005

@m%

per Bhaswar Sarkar
Partner

Mermbership No. 035595

Place: Kolkata
ate: June 26, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Anancial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
As,lf International India Microfinance Limited

|I i
i _}'I_"F:':;Lllv
Lw t
Anjan Das pta
Managing Directar
DIM 03314538 OIN: QFa71775
SR S ) - g
Subhrangsu Chakravarty Sadiyah Zaheer

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(2| koLkaTa |- |
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ASA International India Microfinance Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Corporate information

ASA International India Microfinance Limited (“the Company”) is a Company domiciled and
incorporated in India. The Company is a non-deposit accepting Mon-Banking Financial Company
("MBFC-ND") with the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI').
The Company is engaged in providing financial services to women mainly in rural and semi urban
areas of India who are organized into small groups.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India {(Indian GAAF). The Company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section
133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”}, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies {Account)
Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, provisions of the RBL
applicable as per Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Mon-
Ceposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No. DNBR. FD.
007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016, as amended from time to time (‘the NBFC
Master Directions, 2016"} and other applicable clarifications provided by RBI.

In view of the matters as mentioned in Mote 32, the Company has assessed the impact of the Novel
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic on its liguidity and ability to repay its obligations as and when
they are due. With the gradual relaxation of lockdown rules, as well as resumption of commercial
activities by borrowers in a majority of geographies in which the Company operates, management
is confident that collections will resurme, albeit likely at a lower level than earlier. In this regard, the
Company 399 out of its 402 branch offices in a state of readiness with optimal workforce to deal
with normal business operations, while continuing toe comply with regulatory guidelines on
businesses, social distancing etc. The Company has also commenced fleld visits meet custormers
and expects to resume Kendra meetings post the lock down peried to re-commence collections. In
addition, management has considered various stimulus packages announced by the Government of
India which directly or indirectly benefit NBFC-MFI, current status/outcomes of discussions with the
Company's lenders to seek/extend moratorium and various other financial support from other
banks, agencies and its parent entity in determining the Company's liquidity position over the next
12 months. Based on the foregoing and necessary stress tests considering wvarious scenarios,
management believes that the Company will be able to pay its obligations as and when these
become due in the foreseeable future. According, the financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual
basis except interest on non-performing loans that are recognized on realization. The accounting
polices applied by the Company are consistent with those applied in the previous year, unless
specified otherwise.

An asset or liability is respectively classified as current when it is expected to be realized or settled
in the Company’s normal operating cycle or within 12 months after the reporting date. Current
assets and liabilities include current portion of non-current assets and non-current liabilities
respectively. All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current as required by Schedule III
of the Companies Act, 2013.




ASA International India Microfinance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies/ accounting estimate

a. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management
too make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring & material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

b. Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

c. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Computer software is amortized using the written down value method at a rate of 40% per annum.
d. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment is calculated on the written down value
method as per the useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, which is
the useful lives of the underlying assets as estimated by the management.

e. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs includes interests which are recognised on time proportion basis taking inte account
the amount outstanding and the rate applicable on the borrowings. Processing fees and ancillary
fees incurred for arrangernent of borrowings from banks and financial institutions are charged off
up-front to the statement of profit and loss.

f. Impairment

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset, If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to
its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is
reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

g. Investments
Investments which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from

the date on which such investments are made, are dlassified as current investments, AII Dther
investments are classified as long-term investments. - |




ASA International India Microfinance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

Current investments are carried in the financial statement at lower of cost and fair value determined
on an individual investment basis. Lang-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision
for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments. On disposal of investment, the difference between the carrying amount and net
disposal proceeds are charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

h. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

i) Interest income on portfolio loans is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on
time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rates
applicable, except in the case of non-performing assets ("NPA’'s"), where it is recognized,
upon realization, as per prudential norms of RBI. Any such income recognised before the
assets become non-performing and remaining unrealized are reversed.

i) Interest income on deposits with banks is recognized on a time proportion basis taking
into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

i Processing fees are recognized as income upfront when it becomes due.

iv) Income from services rendered in connection with loans given on behalf of banks/NBFCs
to joint liability groups/individual liability groups organized / monitored by the Company
are recognized on accrual basis as and when such services are rendered.

W) Profit/premium arising at the time of securitization/assignment of loan portfolio is
armortized over the life of the underlying loan portfolio/securities and any loss arising
therefrom is accounted for immediately. Income from interest strip (excess interest
spread) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss account net of any losses at the
time of actual receipt. Interest retained under assignment of loan receivables is
recognized on realization basis over the life of the underlying loan portfolio.

vi) All other income is recognized on an accruzal basis.
i. Foreign currency transactions

All transactions in foreign currency are recognized at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing
at the close of the financial year. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items
or on the restatement of Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised
as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

j. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable under the scheme. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance
sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised
as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised

as an asset.




ASA International India Microfinance Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each year. Actuarial gains and losses
for defined benefit plan are recognized in full in the vear in which they occur in the statement of
profit and loss.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences
are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-
end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred.

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates.

k. Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the
earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realised. If the Company has carried forward unabsorbed depreciation or tax losses, all deferred
tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that
sufficient taxable income will be available in future against which such deferred tax assets can be
realised. At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax assets can be
realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or
virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

I. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

m. Provisions
A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
Dbljgatmn and a reltable estimate can be made DF the amount of the obhgatlan Prcmsm;::s are” rmt




ASA International India Microfinance Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

n. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises
in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

o. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in
hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less,

p. Classification of Portfolio loans

Loans are classified as follows:

Asset Classification Period !
Standard Assets Current Loan and overdue upto 50 days
| Mon-Performing Assets | Overdue from 90 days and more

“Overdue” refers to interest and / or installment remaining unpaid from the day it became
receivable,

The above classification is in accordance with the NBFC Master Directions, 2016 for Non-Banking
Financial Company — Micro Finance Institutions (NBFC-MFIs).

g. Provision for loan portfolio

(a) Provision on portfolio loans are made at the higher of management estimates or minimum
provision required as per RBI directions issued in this behalf.

As per the Master Direction - Mon-Banking Financial Company —Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, the aggregate loan provision to be
maintained by NBFC-MFIs at any point of time shall not be less than the higher of a) 1% of the
outstanding loan portfolio or b) 50% of the aggregate loan installments which are overdue for
more than 90 days and less than 180 days and 100% of the aggregate loan installments which
are overdue for 180 days or more and management estimates of future losses, whichever is
higher.

Further as per circular DOR.No.BP,BC.47/21.04.048/2019-20 dated March 27, 2020 ("Regulatory
Package’), the lending institutions were permitted to grant a moratorium of three months on
payment of all term loan instalments falling due between March 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020
(*moratorium period’). As such, in line with the clarification provided by the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision, in respect of all accounts classified as standard as on February 29, 2020,
even if overdue, the moratorium period, wherever granted, shall be excluded by the lending
institutions from the number of days past-due for the purpose of asset classification under the
[RAC norms.

In respect of accounts in default but standard where provisions of paragr’aph/,{é_f:??eil"a[é"
applicable, and asset classification benefit is extended, Company has made gcneral;ﬁ_{'_‘f:ﬂ:@s of

T

10 per cent of the total outstanding of such accounts. =1l ;
\ o (3| KebLaT
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ASA International India Microfinance Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

(k) Provision for losses arising under securitized/managed portfolio is on the basis of incurred losses
(shortfall in collection), subject to the maximum guarantee given in respect of such

arrangements.

() Overdue loans are written-off, when the prospect for recovery is considered remote as per
management estimate.

r. Leases

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased Iterm, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the |ease term.

s. Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) expenditure

Expenditure incurred towards CSR is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

%

L




AS5A International India Microfinance Limited
Moles ta the Financial Statement as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2020

3

E.

As at As at
IE.m capital March 31, 2020 | Harch 31, 2019
{Rs.] (P}
Authorized Shares
01,0001 sauity shares of R, 100/~ sach 10,00.00,000

10,080,300 iMarch 31, 2019:

Iszued, suhscribed and fully paid-up shares

140.00.00.C00

10,00,00,000 | 10,00,00.000

1,985,950 [March 32, 2015 1,72,380) equity shares of 35, 100/« gacn 1,495,95,000 1,72,38,000
1,95,95,000 1,72,3E,000
. ] e

Total issued, subscribed and Tully paid-up share capital 1,95,05,000 | 1,72,38,000

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 ]
Equity Shares Humber {Rs5.} Humber {Hs.)
AL the beginning of the year 721 1,72, 360 1,72.38,000 1,35,083 L,35.98,300
Tssuas furing tie year 23 570 F3,57,000 _F6IAT 36,309,700 |
[Bhares outstanding at the end of the year 195950 | 1,905,905, 000 1,723,280 1.72,38,000 |

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

year the Comaany has nut proposed/oaclaned any dividend.

armaunts. The distribudon will e in proacctan Lo Lhe aumber o8 equiky snares beld 2y the shareankdess,

Thi Company fed caly 008 cIAss of puty shanes hawg par vaius of RS, 100 aer equ ity share, Faon halder of souity shares is entitied ta ane vote per shara heid.

The divident as and when propasse by the Soard s Directors will ae suajzct to the apgrovel of the sharenolders in (1e ensuing genere: mesting. During the current firanda)

Ll event of lquisatian of Lhe Company, the halcers af equity shares will De ertited ta receive remaining asscts of the Compary, aftar distribatica af gl grefesenttal

Shares held by halding, uitimate halding company and their subsidiaries

Qut o equily s5uad by e Company, shares kel by 55 halding compeny, Wdmate nolding romaany ard telr subsiganes ace a5 below:
As at As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
| Mo. of Shares held (R=.) M, of Shares held (R=.)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10D cach fully pal'd' I
a4 Jrterratianal Holdings (AS&IH), Maeritius, the Halging Cormpany 1,445.385 1,46 36,500 1,25,150 1.25,15,000
erosa Tl Corsultancy Fvt Lid, a wholly awned subsidiary af A5& Interaatanal 28,035 26,00,500 20,805 4,58 500
Holdirgs, Mauntius
M2 Taterztinne | Laldive, L timate oa cant Compan 1 a9 | i 10
Detalls of sharehaldars holding more than $% shares in the Company s
As at March 31, 2020 Ag at March 31, 2019
NamaaF Stireholnk Mo.of Shares held| % of Holding | Mo, of Shares heid | % of Holding
Equity Shares of Rs, 100 sach fully paid
ASA Intematienal Falding (ASALHY, Maaritius, the Heding Company 1,496,365 24, 30% 1,325,150 TLEI%
Proswil. Consu@acy Pet Lid, @ whally cened subsidiary of 020 Inlernalion 24,545 15.21% 28,395 1r4l%
Hzling, Mauritiuzs,
10FC First Benk Lirited 19,581 9.95% 17,226 5.95%
{formeriy JOFC Bank Lirmiie} N

Mo shares were alloted 85 fully said-up by way of beeus sHares of pUrsIZNG to cantract withaut payment heag recsived in cash during the st fee yeass,

te shéres were mought back ay the Campany during tho ast free years,

Further, nane af

Reserves and surplus

As at March 31,

As Bt March 31,

Clazing Balance (&Y

Statubory rasarve

Balanoe ax per he last firardal statements

ade: Amaat transferred [Fom surplus balaace in the Staternart of Profit and Loss
Clesing Balance (B1

General Reseryie
Balarice as par e last financial =2iaments
Closina Balance [ €}

Surplus in the Statermant of Profit and Loss

Ealance as aer the last naAacial statemerts

Prafit far 17e vear

Less: Aporopriasiors
Transterrnd to statutary reserss (8 20% of prodt after tex as required Oy secticn 45-1C
of Resarve Bank af India Act, 1934]

Met surolus in the Statement of Profit and Loss (D)

2020 2019

{Rs.} (Ra.}
Securilles premium account
Balance as oer Lhe &3 inanclal statements AF, 3023928 AP, 82, 75.E5
apd: Dn issue of sauily $haAs A6,01,13,390 | A, 80,408,053

1,1540,37.318 |  77,39,23,925

13.52.79.839 7.61.52.201
03726945 LH1,08,¢38 |
15,50,06, 888 13,52,79,939
79,11,847 79,11,847
70,11,847 [ 70,11,847
51,34.55.516 27,70,24 562
21,88 04, 744 29,58,38,692 |
£,37.26,945 5.91.67.733

___ 76,8603,311  51.36.95.516

Total reserves and surplus {A+B+C4+0)

2,13,05,59,364 |

1,43,08,11,230 |




ASA Inbernational India Microfinance Limited
Notes Lo Hhe Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

5 Long-tarm borrowings T Mon Current partion Current maturities
| As at March 31, #s at March 31, As at March 31, Az at March 31,
F020 2013 2020 |
(A=) [ED] l (L] [Rs.}
Securod
Cebenluras (privately placed) (7} 2,80,50,00,040 A 1,00,00,000 40, 50,00,000 6,656,556 800
Tarms loans
From kanks 313,63,43,412 33,35,55,183 G1,67,20,401 57,49, T8 IE7
Froen Firancia' [rsstaticn 12,00,00,000 34 100, 00,000 12,00,00,000 6,00, 00,000
From ran barking inanse campaniss 45,41, 73,772 £3,09,31,718 1,485,272, 76,145 L4080, 30,625
vakide lcang - 04,957 50474 2,400,000
Exbarral commearcial barrosings 49,25, 00,000 - = ]
4,70.82,17,184 3,51.48,01,E93 2,.B0,45,64,082 2,50,98,76,163
Un=ecurad
Farr lgans from banks S5,00,00,000 55,00, 00,000 - -
55,00,00,000 55,00,00,000 B -
Torm barrcwings [ 5,2582,17,1B4 4,00,48,91,698 2,80,45,64,082 2,50,98,76, 163
arraunt diszased nder the head "sther current abilities " (Refer Mate 5) - - LB, 45,64,082) (2,50,98,75,143)
Total 5258317 164 4,046,48,91,808 - | -

[ 73 Debenlares ane prvetely paced and beoce o Debendure Redemplion Aosana b5 created,

1} Terms and conditions of debentures issucd

Name af debenturs helder ““‘““'};:Tr‘““‘d Rate of Intorest | FePavment
: . i ]

Secured debentures
Suchting Juridisch Eigenaar Actlam Dnstituliznal 32,000,00,000 14.00% | Twa soue
mslalmants o 2kth
menth and 37t
mueith from the date
of dlck imeremae
Sticnting Jurdiss Eigenaar sctizm Institutional 14,03,00,000 15.50% | Two eqgual
irsm@lments in 36th
raritn and 37th
wanth fram the dala
af dekreament
Bullet Repaymant In
Decermber 20232
Bullet Repaymenl in

Bluearchard Mizrafinaros Fund [refer note (2] below] 24,700,700, 000 13865

Bluazrchare Micrefinance Sunc [=afer note () below] 17.00,00,000 1355%
Fearugry 2023
AAM 5831 aad Mazala Trenstments S8R L 52,00,00,000 13.25% FP:\!.IE;;E?FWMEL in
ARV 5.8 AL and Mazala trvestments SARL 4 00,00,000 10.25% ) 55 05% of the
arincipal amaurt will
be repad an

September 30, 2023
and balance 0.01%

o maturity date e,
Seaternoer 30, 2024,

Magallanes Imaacts, FIL ard Hortharn &re Caaital Lined |refeer note (C) below) 17,00, 00,000 13.14%/| Half yearly
instalmaris stamng
alter ara year fram
e cate of
Aighiircament

Bullet regaymant in

30 Drmard Moralaance Furd ard Microfinance Ernaacerant Faality 55,00, 00,030 1360%

January 2023
Blue IE]rnhzrﬂ Mizsafiraroe Fund and Micrafaaace Enbarcement Facioy [refar note (B} brloe] [ 5,00, 00,00 | 13.“%.FBU::_EI' rE_'":;J;;Em i
[Takal | 2210000000 |

{a) Desenlires ameunting Lo R 45,10,00,000 has & callf put cplan @vallatle with Uke Company fDebenture heiders at the end of 35 months fram the date of sllobment
b Debeatumns amouating ta /s, 55,00.00,000 has a call! pul optien availabia wih the Cempany [Debenture nolders at ha end af 24 moriis fram sthe date of alotment.

[c) Dedentures ameantng Lo R 17,20,00,000 has & call/ put cplion avallasle with the Comoany /Debenlure hoders at the end of 34 meaths iz tha date of allebment
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ASA International India Microfinance Limited

Notes to the Financlal Statement as at and for the vear endad March 31, 2020

Provigions: HNen-current Current i
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
: {Rs.} {Rs.} {Rs.] {As.)
Provision Ter emplayee benafits
Prawvslon for gratuily [Refor nate 26) 4,02,62,714 1,583,040, 543 4,892,675 7,A5126
|Prowizian for leave benelis - - 592,081,343 2,08, 74,105
4,92,82,718 1,93,00,543 3,97.64,018 2,16,08,231 |
Provision for portfolic leans [ Refer note 23) )
Oy standard assets § Refes note 2.1.g781) a0,31,954 41,90,515 1,51.31.505 4,33,25,047
&1 non pe-Torming assets [ Refer note 2.0.0{al) | 10,15,43.430 1,79,481,176 = 3
11,03,75,414 2,21,31,691 3,91,31,505 4,33,25,047
Others
Prawslion for securitisecymanaged portfeds leans [ Arfer rate 2.1.49020]) 1,60,72.417 1,35,87,452 31,553,822 74,111,028
Proyvsion Tor litigaticns = = = 218,653,791
e 1,60,22417 1,55 67 452 31,53, 922 2,93,74,813 |
Total 17,56,80,549 | 5,50,20,086 | #,20,49,445 ,42,00,091
T
Shart-term borrowings A m_;;a;:h 3 Ay ﬂi’;h s
[Rs.} [Rs.}
Secured
Cash credit froee banks - 1,215
- 1,213
Tle 2aowa amnunt inciaces
Senared - L7113 |
e o [ 1,213

St Ler Inars ant cesh credit are serured by lypothecation of aderhying pertelin 0ans ard mergin maray depasils, where applicable, o
‘aan agresmenls, The loans/oesn credit Carry an nterest rate ranging fram 3.50% Lo 14,505 poe annum.

aocordanoe with te resgective

Trade payables

As at March 31,
2020

As at March 31, |
2018

(Rs.]

(R=.)

Talal outstans g ues of 11iCa antarprises and snall eateranses *

Tatal sutstancing dues o cragitars athar than micrg enterprses and small enlerarses 7

1,14,95,862 |

1,54,58,146

Total

114,989,867 |

1,54, 58,146

4 Thare are ra amounts Lhal need 12 £ diszased i1 accordance with the Moro Swall and Medum Enterprise Dovelzpment A, 2005 (the “SMED'} pertaining ta micrs ar
5 #g Ao or small enterpriges o it

srall eaterprises, For the yoar ended March 31, 2020 ard March 31, 20189, ra supplies has intimated the Company akout b5 statu

ragistration with the aoprapriale authorty urdes MEMED.

v ncludns Bs. 2,133,470 resalved against old lgans (prios to 1.4.2012), fully matured for refund and ara pending es carrent aderesses af Ll [oanees ana not evailable

her Current liabilities

As ot March 31,

Ax ab March 31,

2020 2019
[Rs.) (R}

Currant maturities of leag-tarm Lormowings i 2,800,458 64,082 #,40,98,76,183
[nterest acerues bal rol due oo hormowings 13,038,62,017 B.2E,62,302
Fayabls o barks towards securilizalion Lransactions a9, 04,012 La,i,a68, 539
Pavabls o Raqks/MBFC: agairst BC amargement® 1,40,27,365 6,141,537, 464
Payeale wo banks against Direct Assgnment 11,43 85,530 =
Uarcalisad g2 11 an securitization transaclions B5,33,352 5,.25,H5, /25
Acvanes from bares/WBFSs (aracing disbursenent] under BC arrargemant” 53,54,074 288,584,438
Empiayes beralts Fayablz & 07,44 359 208,056,403 |
SERIy denealts 1,13,80,519 87.51,375 |
Insurarcse preFium Fayakle 140,041,652 2,10,02,749
Statutory dues payaile 87,836,908 &0,08,067
Inteoast refuad payanie 32,209,062 21,032,208
Dt payables refor Kote 17 (all 1,55,90,362 13,76,458
[ Total 3,1B,03,19,126 2,56,20,43,809

= payabie to Ranks/MBICs against RO arrangement pepresants amount collected from customess for loans disbursed on oehald of Genks HRFCS. An
FrFANgETErS, Sush aMoUnts 2ro repaid on fixed meathly instaments, The amowat collected out of such dis
Acvance from Banks/HEFCS against BC arrangament represents amount renaived frorm

shumsament (s shawn in atker liabilites.
“he Bank/HBEFS far cnward disbarsement W the customers, pend ng disnurszment.

Fer terms ol



ASA International India Microfinance Limited
Motes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended

10A

10EB

March 31, 2020

Property, plant and equipment [{Rs.)

z Furniture and Office [ .
Particulars e Computers equipments Vehicles Total
At March 31, 2018 1,16,19,800 1,95,26,469 1,83,51,913 13,95,559 5,08,93,741
Additiens 41,.07,009 1,18,08,770 40,68,8595 “ 1,00,85 674
Cisposals = e Z 154,200) [54,200)
At March 31, 2019 1,57,26,809 3,13,36,239 2,24,20,808 13,41,359 7,08,25,215
Additions &63,65,358 76,73,707 78,55422 62,000 2,1%,56, 487
Disposals - - - - -
At March 31,2020 2,20,92,167 3,90,09,946 3,02,76,230 14,03,359 9,.27,81,702
Depreciation
At March 31, 2018 48,31,766 1,19,17,132 650,14,197 B,02,032 2,36,55,127
Charge for the year 23,37,041 72,000,625 62,07, 786 1,55,402 1,59,00,944
Disposals - - . (37.829] {37,829
At March 31, 2019 71,68,B07 1,91,17,757 | 1,22,21,983 10,09,695 3,55,18,242
Charge for the year 30,468,055 q97,17,428 63,950,504 1,19,418 1,92,70,405%
Disposals = - - - =
At March 31,2020 1,02,16,862 2,B8,30,185 1,86,12,487 11,29,113 5,87,88,647
Met Block
At March 31, 2019 85,568,002 1,22,18 482 1,01,98, 825 3,31,664 3,13,06,973
At March 31,2020 1,18,75,305 1,01,79,761 | 1,16,63,743 2,74,246 3,39,93,055
Intangible Assets: (Rs.)
Particulars Software

At March 31, 2018
Additlons
Disposals
At March 31, 2019
Additions
Disposals
At March 31,2020

Depreciation

At March 31, 2018
Charge for the year
Risposals

At March 31, 2019
Charge for the year
Disposals

At March 31,2020

MNet Block
At March 31, 2019

At March 31,2020

63,64,597
32,18,550

95,83,147

6,47,000

[ 1,02,30,147

27,60,024

10,480,445

— 47,09,469

70,987,064

68,06,533

4B,73,675

34,23,614




ASA International India Microfinance Limitad
Motes to the Financlal Statement as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2020

11 Deferred taw assets: non-curraht As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
- (R=) (®=:)
[mipact of difereace bevaesn weithen down value of depreciable assers as par bpaks of aeepunt @ far Income s parpases 45,082,288 35,06,383
[mpact of provisizn on partfolie, managed loans and ather socelvaboas 3,04, 66,027 1,12, 38,501
trpact of expenditure chasged Lo the stasement of prafil a7d 1055 In she current vear bl allgwed for e gurpases on payT ot 3,23,01,492 2,60,76,046
basis
[ Tatal ] 6,76,50,606 4,10,12,742
12 | Loans and advances Mon-current Current
fUnsecurec, corsldered goad unless stated atharslse) Az ak March 31, Ax ot March 31, As ot March 31, As at March 31,
| anxn 2018 2020
B (R} (Rs.) (®s.) {R=.)
A. |Partfolio loans
Ireividual Ipans:
Consicered good= 1,595, 10,06, 564 §2,52,19,.526 #,28,30,41,546 &,01,3D,81,127
Considered douksful*= 20,31,78,870 3,75,70,359 -
1,88,41,85,434 66,17,68,025 7,26,30,41,546 |  5,03,38,81,137
BE. |Security deposits
Carsdered geod 15,459,756 | 11,60,756 25,62,200 6,432,000
15,49,756 | 11,560,756 29,62,200 5,02,300
©, |Advances recoverable in cash or kind
znsiderae good - - 5,37,81,030 LR R e
Considered cowtiil 1,60,22417 1,35,67,452 - &
1,60,22,417 1,35,B7,452 5,.37,81,738 94,98,033
o. |Others
Considerad good
Prapald oxpensas - 1,332,375 40,71, 532 LH, 33,054
Loan Lo stall 30,682,641 22,04,000 34,97,458 21,486,060
Atvance iacoma taw Tnet of provision Tor meaton of Ru 14,01,22,8339 [March 31, 3,80,40,158 3,19,30,134 -
2019 Rs. 13,39,47,955)]
| Cthear ruceivables (net of provisan of ks. 31,9%,350) (March 31, 2019 A5, - - 3,99,01,744 ,54,96,907
16,24, 2685 #
2,20,02, 797 3,42,66,507 2,83,71,034 2,97,15,688
[Total 1,94,37,60,404 71,08,04, 640 7,38,81,56,519 6,07,41,98,649 |
*Ropraserty sandaid assets classifed in gotorgance with the Master Directions.
*Ropresents Aon-2e-Torming assets dassified in accardance with the Master Diractans.
*rearesenls @ raunt recelvable in respect of ceceazed karrowers
1% |Other assats . Maon-current Current =l
- 5 As at March 31 As at March 31 As at March 31 Az at March 31,
ans d goed . " " '
i 2020 2010 2020 g |
[Rs.} [Rs.} (k=) —(Rs.)
YA cdirent aank kalanoes (Reler Haote 12) 12,45,00,000 13,139,639, 544 - = 7
12,45,00,000 13,10,ED,996 E = =
Others
[rrerest aocrued on porlfolio loans . * 7,369,544 2,33,9L,378
Intarest strip on s=cetilgation rarsachans 24,434 12,70,201 £5,03,318 4.61,15.524
byt bui net dia sn eepasils pleced with banks and fnandsl 1, 22,806 2,4, B81 7,21,13,103 57,451,150
Sapyice fess receivaale under Business Comespandence arrargemants £,15,60, 032 9,51,05,262
Hargin meaey with nar-karking financial companies * 6,534,675 £, D0,00,000 25,00,46,724 161 40, 00, 0a0
5,92, 82,095 9,35,69,002 41,45 45 067 28,45,63,321
| Tatal 10,37,82,055 32,45, 38,554 41,45,45,06F 2B,45,63,321 |
= Placed a5 ler Lowaros tarm Inars availed ard BUSINESE COITRSPINCEnE 11ENEEMEIES
i4 [Cash and bank balances Non-Current Portian I Current Partion
| As at March 31, fis at March 31, fis at March 31, | fs mk March 31,
2020 20149 2020 2019
(Rs.] [EN] (R} {RE-}
Cash and cash aquivalents
Balancns with banks
-on cureEnl aCooUrTs - 55,11,56,982 91,61,27,522
-depasit with poginal maturity of less than three mortas - 14,0, 0a, nan 24
Casgh in nano 5,81,268 2,08,173 |
= - - 65,17,38,247 02,.63,35,695
fMhar bank balances;
:r;p*::l; l;r:i]t:u ariginal matunty for mare than 3 months but aol morg than 13 = 1,50,00,000 £,03,56,920 1,27.21,370
1or T
Depzsit with criginel matdrity for mese shan 12 meaths (%] 12,45,00,000 11,68,63,555 11,84,34,000 32,33,17,408
132,45,00,000 13,19,69,996 16,88,70,928 34,20,38,778
et disclosed angar non-curcenl g25ets (Rater Yot 13) (12,45,00,000) {13,19,69,594) x
Total = - 82,06,09,175 1,26,83,74,473 |

%] [rcludes deposs cerlifizales of ks, 23,06,55,418 (March 31, 2019: Rs. 25,41,16,515) arked as lien lawerds tem laans availed from banks ard finardal Instiutions,
towards casa collatesal placed in conneclicn with portfalio loan secaritisgdon 37d business CorMespenoence arrangements enternd witn banks/N3FCs,
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Revenue Tram operatlons

Year ancded Manch

¥ear ended March

31, 2020 31, 2019

- ; (R=.] [Rs.} |
Lrterest inoame an parifolio loans 1,78,16,85,005 1,26,68,93,775
Serviza fee income Froer Business coimespondance arrangeTents 30,05,34,638 27,03,11,977
Excess inlerest spreac on Cirect assgnment 3,00,45,804 .
Excess Intarest spread on securilizalicn B,95,38,025 TEG,33,994
QOther operating revemnss;
Recavery against Inans written off 61,536,918 a4, 24 ESO
Processing ‘e oo aeclelo 'gans 15,35,45,400 11,14,16,329
| Interest an margie money degesits™ 4,86,78,844 4,03,06,002

—
Total 2,40,86,88,053 |  1,79,98,86,177

* epressris clerest on Macgin meney depasits marced es lien Lowards Lerm Ipars avallen from banks and frarcal Instoatinns and an deacsits marked as casn callasral

alaced In coanectar with partfziio loan sacu-itsation ard business correspandent arrangements antared with nanksNGFCs.

‘other income

Year anded March

Year enced March

Tokal

31, 2020 21, 2018

| (Rs.) {R5.]

Interast ineome on ixed (apasits 33,15,374 15,14373

Zain an sale of currant Invesmnants 1,20,71,783 1,25,34,020
=5 prowvisian far liligetion writhen bacs 1,66,03, 164 &

Liabilives wrilten back 93,42, 767 | =

Misoollanaous inoame 20,849,531 | 38,22,110

5,10,86,641 | 1,78,75,503 |

Employee benefits expenses

¥ear ended March

¥ear ended March

Salarias and Lonus
Coalribulizns to provident func [refar note () below]

31, 2020 31, 2019
R | (R=}
41,78,30,523 A5,01,46,555 |
3,15,09,53% 1,74,06,320

Contrbutions to Employes State Insurance Sorporaton 1,118,33,564 1,10,47,333
Sratuny meaenses (-alar 26) 3,36,41,643 1,40,07,835 |
Leave Genalits 1,64,07,238 95,84,494
Staff walfara expenses 61,58, 498 54,23,141
el _ - 51 84,61,101 36,61,05,737 |
Feale (8}

Thore are Aumermas Fleroretalive ssues felating to she Supreme Court (S0} judgement on PF dated 28th Febrozry, 2018, A5 a matter of cautan, the Camaeny Fas made a
provisor of ks 1,44,13,904 (Marck 31, 2015: Rs. 11,76,458) on a gresaective basis fram the date of the SC ancar. The Campany will update itz pravsian, oa receiving

ferter clarity an the subjecl,

Finance Costs

Year cnded March
31, 2030

Yaar andad March

{Rs.}

[Ps.}

nteress an:
denentures

38,71,47,05%

17,004,958, 372

= jncludas Ioan processing and -:lrranan_-'r;f.'ilil:llill:l-'l ags,

term kaans fram banks 25,81, 61,042 27.26,81,614
termn lagns frem fingacial irssitutizns 4,035 4,35,516
term lzans frem ran banking finandal companies 37,24,70,185 0,489,035, 448
ovrrdrafs faclity . 1,558,086
e bnance oosts = q,08 GE5A 3,01,35,793
Lrimrest on albarst™= - G508, 081
Tagal 1,10,50,70,829 |  7R,44,00,750

*1 Rpprosents [nterast provided lowesds disputed servion o duss o respect of financial yaas F00&-09 to E011-13, based on Dest estimate of the mansgement.

Depreclation and amortisation expenss ¥ear ended March | Year ended March
31, 2020 31, 2019
Rs. Rs.}
Drpreciaticn of Langilie assets 1,92, 00,405 1,58,00,044
Amartisalian al il‘-ﬂ?‘n.gl.tlle asgets 20,57 064 10,4%,445
Total #,13,67,469 1,78,50,589

Cither expansas

" Yaar ended March
3. 2030 0 | 0 31,2019

| ¥ear ended March

(R&.] _{Rs.})
Renat 4,30,75,308 1,35,73.017
Rates and mxes L A3 a0,706 1,23,61,0288
REeaairs & maimlenance - cthars 15,258,554 12,358,555
Travelling and carveyance FA1, Lo B0 2,13, 26,617
Communication expersas 1,28,37,807 71,22,431
Frinting ard statiouey £9,03,093 55,423,224
Legel and girofessiznal peapases 4. B0.31.119 4,51,90,904
Paymant 1o auctors (Refer nole belsw) 07 B3,3594 15,498,510
1T supparl chargas 42,749,553 19,37,597
Bank charges (A3,47.017 §9,01,672
Insurance 25,121,254 | 17 49,463
Power aac Tel B4,05, 237 | 37,34,348
Hambersnip ant subssription 400,95, 550 13.02,5382
Carpareie social respanssility expenses (Rafar nate 333 1,11,65.611 52,13, 860
SRoE ANEIUs BXOEMSES 2,15,45,312 1,774,070, 554
[Tatal - 23,49,90,658 17,83,10,312
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20 (a}_Payment to audilars:

Particulars Yaar anded March | Year ended March |
| ¥l 200 | @ 31,2019 H
[R=.] [Rs.}
| &5 ardiars:

audit leg fexciudirg Gocds ard servios tas) 47,000,000 40,000,000

orher services (including certificalicn leas) 45,050,000 45,00.90'}

| Rsimbuargerinent of BxIenses 2,00, %54 55516

Total 87,680,394 85,98,516

21 Provislans and {;ibﬂ-nffs

¥ear ended March

Year ended March

@i, z030 | 31,2003

{Rs.] (Rs.}

Cantagent arovision for standand assats [Aefar nate 2.1.q(3] G479z 2,34,48,652
Srowvisar Tar non perfarming assets [Refer note 2.1.g{a]] B.34,02,254 L 75,58, 550)
Arovisar far secaritised) menaged portfolis oars [Refer pate 2.5.q000] (1B,22,135) 93,372,492
2e-Ualio leans wreitter-off  on baok [Re‘er nome 2.1.01z)] £,30,96,970 244,330,115
Forrolio lpans writter-off  off boak [Refer nole 2.1.90c)7 QZ, 74,466 L
Srovisan for ather receivables [Refer nete 2,1.615)] 15,075,065 764,309
Frowision for afwanca recoverable in cashking 15,71,184 L
Tatal 14,77,45,7108 5,04,12,092

22 |Earnings par share { EPS

Fraft Toe Lhe year

Hez profit for calce!atizo af basic ard diluted EPs

¥ear ended March

Year ended March

weighled avarage namaer of eauity shares In czlzulatag basic 2nd diluted EP5

Bazic k Diluted EPS

| 34,3020 [ 3% 3019
[Rs.] z (R}
31,86,34, 742 70,58,38,592
31,86, 34,7494 29,58,33 592

1,84 538 1,51,340
1,722.93 1,954.80
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74 A Details of Business Correspond@nca arrangementes exacuted with banks/NEFCs:
Tha Company has entessd inlo DSAS with bar<s/NBFCS under the following lenms:

5, Amaunts received from the bark are disbursed as loan Lo loin-Nabilty groups arganizad J maritared by e Sompany and such Jsat-lisgility arouas ane considered as

hanksMBFCS Dormawers.
ii, The Comaany grovides servizas in conractian with recovery and manttaring of such loaas.
iii. TAe Comaany has provided collaterals in e form of foed deposis which waud oe edjusied

by banks/MEFCS, Lo the extent of default made by barrowers.

[Particulars Year an'dnﬂ March | Year ended March
31, 2020 31, 2019
. {Rs.} (Rs.) |
~alal book weue of the kan disbarsed through managed porfolia durieg the year 5,18,00,10,0400 4,68,80,30,022
Cutstanding Ba arce of Laan Cisbursad threugh managed aertfoliz as at year mrid 1,68,82,70,509 3,20,65.683,633
Service fan incomae recagnised durirg the pear 3,05, 34, 636 7,01,11,577F

Particulars Az at March 31, A=z at Mareh 31, |
2020 2015

[Rs.) R}

Cradit enhancements provided and outstanding: |

|zash callate-al | 21,54,55,651 26,35,74,953 |

24 B Detalls of Securitised portfolio and income arising cut of tha same:
Curng Lhe year, tae company has sold 155 partfalio loeas trough secantisation @ rargemants. The information reqasding Lhe securitisation gclivity as an orginales i shown
bl
| Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2020 321, 2019
{Rs.) (Rs.)

Torel baps walue of (e lgan asset securilised during the year (4]

alr carsideration recewae far the loan asset securt=ed during the year (23

Sam an securitisatian (8-4)

Parlfolis an seouritised ang cubstancing as &l e year end (indud ag Minimum Retentian Rala)
troame from esses securtisation resogrised curing the year

1,06,10,91,826
1,06,10,91 846
502,235,246
0,59,38,026

1,36,44,42,125
1,35,54,42,125
G0,36,44, 745
765,39, 494

Az ab March 31, ;

Particulars Az at March 3L,

2020 2018

(s} [Rs.}
Credit enhancemants provided and autstanding
Frincigal suacedinatizn 4,72,85.317 14,59,97,256
rash Collatera] §,43,25.742 9,53,72,655

Te Company has srarsisred all the rights ant ol gations rolatng o ahove Securitizaticn loan assets o

the bupers with which securigatan armngeamenls hava anen

enterad into.
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Scgment reporting:

The Company operates in a single repertable segment e, giving loans and other related sctivities, which have similar risks and raterns for
the purpose af Accounting Standard-17 on 'Segment Reporting’. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. Tndia,

Gratuity

Tne Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or mare of service IS eligible far gratulty
of departure and It 5 computed at 15 days salary [last drawn salary) for these wha joined afer 30th June 2011 and at 30 days salary
(last drawn salary) for those wha foined  before 156 July 2011 far sach campleted year of service. The schema 15 funded with an insurance

carmpany In the form of qualifying insurance palicy.

The fellowing tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the staterment of profit and loss, the Tunded status

anel amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

Gratuity

Particulars A= at March | As at March

31, 2020 31, 2019
Assumplions:
Liscount rite 5,718, TR
Selary sscalation 9.50%: 9.20%
Withdrawal rate 20.00%: 17.83%
Expectad rate of raturn on assats F.43% T43%
Expacted avereae romaining working 1ile of esployees 28 28
Particulars As at March Ag at March

31, 2020 31, 2019

[Rs.) [Rs.}

Table Showing ehanges in present value of Defined Benefit obligation:
Prasent value of deflned benafit abligations as at bepinning of the year 4,55,37,293 3.03,E8, 225
[nterest cost 29,968,330 23,468,704
Past service cosk 67,283
Currant service cost 1,67,06,987 93,681,303
Benefit paid (17,05,577) [9,B0,9768)
Actuarial foss on obligations 1,40,06,%06 38,34,254
Present value of delined penefit abligations as at and of the year 7,75.45,939 | 4,5537,.253
Table showing fair value of plan assets:
Falr value of plan assets at beginning of the year 2,55,01,224 200,601,020
Expected meturn an plan assets 17,79,451 16,277,017
Contributions 39,12,319 36,986,975
Barnefits paid [1X,05,577) (9,80,976)
Actuarial less on plan assets [17,06,871) {4,312)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 2,77,80,546 2,55,01,224
Actuarial {gain]/loss recognlsed:
Actuarial loss on obligations 1,40,06,20& 3B,34,251
Actuarial loss on plan assets 17,068,871 4,812
Actuarial loss recognised in Lhe year 1,57, 13,777 38,39.066
The amounts to be recognised In the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss:
Present value of ollgations at the end of the year 7,75,45,939 4,55,37,283
Fair walue of plan as=sts at the end of the year 2,77 ,B0,516 2,05,01,224
Wet liability recognised in balance sheet 4,97,65,393 2,00,36,069
Expenses Recognised In statement of profit and loss:
Past service cost 7,283
Current service cost 167,048,987 | 93,81,803
[nterest cosl 29,948,330 23,406,704
Expected refurn on plan assets (17,759,451} (£6,27,017)
Net Actuarlal loss recognised In the year 1,57,13,777 38,39,068
Expanses recognised in statement of profit and loss 3,36,41,643 | 1,40,07,839
Actual return on plan assets A2,580 16,22, 205
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(b}

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows: (R5.}
particulars Az at 31st As at 315t As at 31st Az at 31st As at 31st
March, 2020 | March, 2019 | March, 2018 | March, 2017 | March, 2016

Crelinad baseht phligations /A, 75,415,938 4,55,37,293 3,08,B8 225 3. 590G 070 1,99,54 813
Plan assets 2,77,80,546 2,55,01,224 2,09,61,020 1,68,13,97% 31,26,037
Deficit | f4,57,65,393) (2,00,360589) (89,37, 205) (01,B6,0023]  ¢1,68,28,776)
Experience adjustments an plan labilites [{gain)/ioss] 1,470,086, 905 358,34,254 (13,20,271) 17,22 935 | 24,27 A7F
Expariance adjustments on plan assets [{gain)floss] 17,068,871 4,812 (85,559} {3,78,078) 26,315
Actugrial {gain)/ loss due to change an assumations 1,57,13,777 38,39,066 (14,05, 7300 13,44, 848 24.53,857

Tha Malor cateqaries of Plan Assels as a percentang gf";

As at March| As at March
31, 2020 31, 2019
LIC Fund 100% 100%k

he fair value of Total #an Asset are as follows:

The estimates of future salary Increases conslderad In actuarial walualion, bekes account of inflation, seniority and other relevant factars,
such as supply and demarnd in the emploviment rrarket,

The company expects to contrbute Rs. 4 98,606 (March 31, 2019; Rs, 7,62,972) to gratuity fund In the financial year 2020-21,

The gverall eepected rate of return on assets 15 determined based on markel prices prevailing on that dake, spplicable to the peried over

which the abligation @5 to be scktled,

Ampunt incurred a5 expense for defined concrbution ta Providant Fusnd is Rs. 1,70,95,631 (March 31, 2019; Rs, 1,63,19,870)
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27 Related party disclosures

A. Mames of related parties and related party relationship

Names of related parties

Wilimnate Holding Company

Catalyst Microfinance Investor [mlernatianal Holdings

Halding Company

ASA [nternational Halding, Mauritius

Entities under commen contral

Froswift Consultancy Private Limited

Finoy Consultancy Private Limited

Pagasa Consultancy Private Limitad

Key Management Personnel
(KMPY

Mr. Anjan Dasguptz, Managing Director
Mr. Subhrangsu Chakravarty, Chicf Financial Officer
Ms, Sadivah Zahear , Company Secrecary

B. Mature of transactions

Malure of transaction Mame of Related Party March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs.} {Rs.}

Salary, Banus and ather allowances* Mr, Anjan DAasgupta G2,B6,801 39,25,07%
Contribution o provident fund Mr. Anjan Dasgupta 337,221 2,448,415
Salary, Bonus and other allowances® Mr. Subhrangsu Chakravarly 27,17,240 10,11,408
Contribution Lo provident fund Mr. Subbrangsu Chakravarly 1,70,400 0,275
Salary, Bonus and other allowances* Ms. Sadiyan Zaheer 762,765 6,674,472
Cantribution to provident fund Ms. Sadiyvah Zaheer 44,075 40,972
Reimbursement of Expenses Proswift Consultancy (F) Ltd. 4,006,730 3,6B,202
Training fees Proswift Conaultancy (F) Lid. 2,00.000
Rent paid Proswift Consultancy (F) Litd. J.44,000 738,000
Reimbursement of Cxpenses Finoy Consultancy (P} Lid, 3,23,000 -
Reimbursement of Expenses Pagesa Consultancy (P} Lkd. 5,60,000 -

=45 the Future liability for gratuity and leave has been provided for the Coempany as a whole, the amount pertaining to the xay

Managemant Farsonnel are separately not ascertainzglle, and therefore nat included above,

28 Leases

Operating lease: Company as lessee
Cectzin ollice premises are chtained cn operating lease, The lease Llerm is for one to nine years and renewable for further periods either
rmutually cr zt the option of the Company. Thers ara no restrctions imposed by lease agreements. There are no subleases and Lhe lezses

are cancellable.

Description March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 |
e [Rs.} (Rs.}
Dperating lease expenses recognised during Lhe year 4,35,75,308 3,35,73,017

29 Contingent Liabilities

|pescription

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

(R5.}

(Rs.]

contested by the Company!
Income Tax [=)

Demands/claims by various Government authorities not acknowledged as debts and

Service tax [net of provision recognised of Rs, 2,18,63,791] (=*)

10,96,26,107

2,61,35,029
30,04,811

Total

10,06,26,107

2,91,39,840

(=] Based en discussicns with the solicitors/favourable decisions in similar cases, tha management believes that the Company has a good
rhance of success in above mentioned cases and hance, no provision there against is congiderad necessary.
(=*} Rs. Mil (March 31, 2019: Rs. 55,86,861) has been charged off to the statement of profit & loss during the year, During the year, the
Company had applied For @ reselulion of an ongoing litigation with Service Tax Authority under a Sabka Vishwas Legacy Dispuls
Resolulion Schems (SVLLDRS) offered by the Government of [ndia. The Company has received the final statement in the form SVLDRS-3
from the Government whereby the company had to make an additional payment of Bs. 52,00, 608 to close the litigation, The Company
has paid Lhe ameunt on February 14, 2020, Censidering the abeve the company has reversed the remaining provision and related
interest provision for the service tax lability ameunting fo 85, 1,658,63,184.
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During the year, the Company has resised interest on parlolio loan in excess of interest caps stipulated ungar pricing guidelines i the MBFC Master
Zimgctions, 2014 for Mon-Barking Fineacial Cenpany - Micra FAnance Instituticns (NBFC-MFIS) to e ewcent of Re. 19,22 BE7. Balgnce of similar excess
mterest realised in earlie: years pending refurd on tha commeacaman: of the paer was Bs. 41,02, 206, During the ye2ar the Compary has refunded ks
27,05,311 and the and the ramalning unzaid amaunt is disciosed s “lrierest refund seyesle” ander *Other Curment llabilities”, Tha Management oelioves
that after corsigaring the refurd, Icans (1 respact af when such excess interest wers realised 5 in accerdanoe with NBFC-MFIs norms.

The: Employess Provident fund Orgenczation (EPF0) vide notdfication cated March 06, 2018, pcdrawladgeo the difficulties faced in submission of Azdhar by
members of Employes Persiza Schene (SPS) In the Stata of Assam. The Iss.a was re-mamines by EPFO and new members joinng E2S In the state of
Migam were exempied Tram sabmission of sadhar th 315t March 2014,

Howewer, during this parlog ragistratan of now stafl member for E25 with said stale was Qetting rejected for nen-suamissan of Aadhar. fs @ result new slalm
withaut Agdhas could not te reqlstered ant consaguartly ther and compeny's conlributian W@ EPS could nok b geposited T date,

Morenwar, ‘or ather states also, and mosty from Tripere end West Bengal, the Cormgany could nob deposit sama FForeated Lo ils empioyaesTormes
amaloyoes dus lo unavailazility of foll cale of birth from eir respective Aadhar carg, Tha sald issue hes bean duly inforrmed Lo the concgimed FE Authoritias
ty tha Company.

e Company hes been genserally regular in Tollowing up with the concarned ragicnal provicent fund commsssaner Moo apgropriete résoluton to enabla tha
Company in depositing the afsraseid coabrbatlons, The matter 15 yet t2 he danbied ane amount aggregaling RS, 11,96,302 I respect of a‘oresald
rantribulions Ll March 31, 2020 aad gaid subsaquently Rs, 3,56,394 and tha balanoo amount of Re. 8,530,410 = neld by e Company &3 a Lablity In e

T kowal Caronavins (COVH3-19]) pandemic (dedared as sueh by See World B2gth Orgealsadon o0 March 1, #020) has contributed o e sigeilicant decling
and wpeatilicy in glabal and Lndian markels, and @ sigeiicant dec.ezse in economic actvity, On March 24, 2020, the Government o India gancunced a natizn-
wiga lockdown il &pril 14, 2030, which was ecended 91 May 31, 2020, thoagh subseguent announoamants, to conbain the spresd of e vires. This has
led 2 slgrificans disrupbons and dislocations Tor individuals and businesses, impacting Companys reguiar eoeretans including lending 2ad collection
actlvities dua o Inacil Ty of pmployeas @ paysizally resck borrowsss,

TR Gompany has majes praportion of (5 borrowers and AJM 0 rural gesoraphles, whess tha impact of COWID-19 has been relatively lowe: 50 Tar comparsd
ta urben geographies. AddCanglly, Lhe gowernment has announcad @ secies §F econemic raliet massares for raral Dndia, which will Turther suppars rural
Larrowveer's “spayrmenrt capacity,

As discussed anove, the COVID-19 panderc has Impacsad Company's reguler poeretans indadicg lenoing and collection activitles, corsamuently imaecting
the careving value of tha lzans ang agvances, financial posdan and perfoomencos ol the Company.

Furthes, sursuant o the Resarve Bank af [ndia crculars doter March 27, 20030 and May 23, 2020 allowirg lending nsttutizns to ofer moretoriom Lo
bOrrowers an caymeEnt o Instaiments faling due betwese March 2, 2020 ard August 31, 2020, the Company has extended fwill be extendicg moratariom b
its borrowers In accorcance with ks Brard approved palicy.

In vigw of the matters merticnad abave, the Comaany has assessad the Impact of tha COVID-19 pardemic on ils ligdidily and asility to (Uil s obigatlions
as @ael whien Lhey are due and has evaluated the asset-llabo ity maturty (ALM] aattor in various tmne Duckels 85 prescribed ungar the guigalines issund oy
the REI. ‘With Lhe pradugl relasation of lockdosn rales e Company was able o oper its les arler follewing a7 rules and regulations s issued oy
canceraed Slave end Loce! Govesnments, From June D1, 2020, the Cempany resumes sallectian from 45 barrowers who opted out of moratorium, As
shierved since e resarmpton of cpesations, e management Is confdent thal codlections will corticue o improve, aigelt ikaly to ba at a lewar lovel than
sarlies, [n acdilion, management has corsdered vasious stimulis packages anraunced by the Governrneal of Inda which will directly o Incoractly banefit
NBFC-MF], current stabus/outcomes of SEcussions with tna Campany's leadess o seskfexlend morgtadium ang varous ather inancal suppart fram other
barks and fraacial instizutcens in deamrning tha Compeny's Squidity positan over the nest 12 manths from e end of repecting panon, Based an the
foregolng and necessary stress basts consitenng various scenarios, meaagement seligves that the Company wil oe able ta fulnll its obtgatians 85 end when
thase become Jue in e faraseeanls uture, The Campany hat sufident ligudity bath during and after lack gown periad sooas o fulfll all it Didigeations e
and whner they bacame dua. Moreawar, the Campany has received Mmesh funds Tam 18 lenders, curing Jure 2070,

Caring tha year endac March 31, 2020, the Company has recognised arovisions aggregating bo RS, £ 79,235,981 pvnr and above the minimum provision
pascribed oy applicahlz B2 regulatans towards COWVID-19 ead ather anticipated desnquencies

Datalis of C5R Expenditure )

Particulars March 31, 2030 March 31, 201%)
__[Rs.} {Rs.]|

) Grass amaunt fequired Lo e saent by the Carvgary daring the year 53,427,203 27, 64,678

by AmounT spENE guring the yaar
v Construclanghoguisilion of any aszat = ]
ii] On pdraoses oTher than (1) abave 1,11,85,611 G2,13,880 |

Information on Net Interest Maraln

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
feBrags inTerest {a) 21E % 22.53%
i&w:ra;: afTaclive cost of Borrowing (b i 13.40%
{MeL IntErest margin {a-b} 9.17%

Additional disclosura required by the Reserve bank of India:

Exposure bo Gold Loan
The Compary las no exposure o Gold Lear diresthy or ingorackly,
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Disclasures required as per the Non Banking Financial Company

=Systamically Important Non-Deposit taking Company [ Reserve Bank)

£ Directions, 2016:
Particulars | Ramarks
1. |Capial 1 Risk {Wieighted) Assets Ratio lafer Mota ka. 34 (D]
1. [Inveslments e Company keg ra irveslments a5 on Marcn 31, 2020 (March 31, 2819; M)
1. |Dervetives
i Parward fale Agreesnent / Tnterest Rate Swap The Cxmpany has ra transaction or axgosure in corvatves in the careent and
nrevinus yaar.
1 Excrignige Traded Inlerest Rate (IR} Derivatives
Further Lthe Company dees Aot bave wahedges fomalgn cur-ency expasure in the
i1 | Disclasures on Rigd Exposure 0 Derhativas current and pravisds year.,
W) | Forsseg rate agraementiintanest saba swap
4. |Disdosusas glating to Securitszation
k] Informatian duly cerlified by Lhe SPY'S auditers ablained by the Rafes Mota koo 34 (E.0)
ariginatirg KEFC from Lhe SPY.
] Demils of Financig! Assets sold o SecoriCzation f Reconsbivctan The Zompany kas rek s240d firancly! assats 92 seountEation ar reoarstresin
campany fes Assat Keoanstrestizn corpary Mo assals reconstructan ouring the curmant year ano arovinus por.
iid) Details of Assignment ransactionrs undertakan by K3FCs | Redar Mobr: Mo, 34 (E.0i)
o Delai s of nen-parfarming Mnaaclal assets purchased f s6id
H Demlls of nor-parforming faarcal assats purchasad @ | Tae Campary bas nat purchased | sald non-gesTarmieg financial gssats during the
|CLITENT yaar ans previous yoar
K] Detzlls of Moa-pafarming Firancial Assats sald :
Assat Lianlity Manzgement Maturty patterr: af cortain tems of Asses AL
Aaler Mota ha. 34
b and Lakd lfias afer Mota ka ]
T Expasures
I} Exposure to Real Fsiate Sactor The Company Bes o edpasure 70 real estate directhy or indiractly,
iy Exposure ta Cagital Markat e Company hes no epasure W cagita! market directly or Indisactly,
&. Letails of [aanzieg of parenl camagny products Mane:
n, Eatalls of Sing'e Brrrowes Lnik (26U ¢ Group Borrower Lonil (GEL) Tne Camgany bas not gexcasges any mit In respes of SGL Y GBC during the
pxoeeded gy the MBFC CUMTent and previcus vear.
12 Unsacyrad adwances Raler Mota kg, 34 (3]
11, [Miscellanezas
it |Reqistreton cbtaines from othar firanclal sector requlatars Rafer Mota Ma. 34 (4]
iy |DiEcosdre of Fenalties Impased by RE1 ang athes ragulzsars Mo panaltes were imposed by RBL ang olher regulators gusing the curreat yaar,
Wiy |Reated Farty Transacbans Refer Mote Mo, 27
vy [Ratngs assgned by credil rating agerces and migretion o ralings Refier Mote M. 34 (1)
furing the yaar
W) |Remuneration af Diectors Refer Mole Nz, 27
wil  |het Fofit or Loss for the perlod, priar pesled Ibams aad caargns in Eefor Mot Mo, 208 2.2
acceantirg palicias
with  |Rewvenue Recaorition Refar Note Mg, Z.1(n}
vy |accaurtng Standard 21 -Corsalideted Finendal Slatemeants (CF) Tha Compeay does nak have any subsizary or assaclate 25 on March 31, 3020
henca A5 21 is nol aaplizable to the Company,
13, |Additiaral Deechisures.
Y Peavzians ard Cartingancies Refar hate Mo, 34 {1}
i :Drg-.-.- Croaw Trom Resepyeag Thera has beon ra cras down from resarves dusing Lthe year encad March 31, 23320
| [March 31, 2019: pil)
] il;;nrmr:'ﬂrlnr. af Depasits, Advences, Cxoosures god B3RS
a)  (Corcartration af Depasits (for depasit teking 4BFCS This Disdosure is pob applizable 35 e Company as 12 s not a depasil taking K2FC
0] |Corcarcration af Advances Refzr Mote Mo, 3= (K}
o (Copcari-alior af Expasurs Refar Mate No. 34 (K}
d] Concertation ol HRAs Refar Mate Mo, 34 (K3
2) |Sedorwise NRAs Relar Mam Mo, J< (L)
M [Mowvement of NFAs Reter Mate Mo, 34 (M)
W) |Owersess ASEET ('D7 TN25E WIN J2ink Vertures and Subsdiaries aoroad}| The Cormgany has no exsogure or trensaction with ovarseas As5ets
|
v} |OF-balance Sheel 53%s spansored [which are required & ba Thirs are na off balance sheot expasure as on March 31, 2020
lepnse dated as zer gccounling narms)
ol Rater Mot Mo, 34 (M)

IDis;;'usu': of Corrplainzs




aga International India Microfinance Limited
Notes Lo the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

=}

E.il}

Capital ko Risk -Assets Ratio (CRAR):

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2013

Partlculars
CRAA {M)

CAAR - Tier 11 Capital (%)
Aqnaurt of subardineted dent ralsed as Tier-L1 capital
NEUrE© L Bobi lnsbrurnents

55,00, 00,000

2531 25.08
CRAR - Ties 1 Copital {%h) 2: .;;J 1%%;

55,00,00,000

The followings figures are being raported based on certificate lssued by the auditors of the SPY

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[R=.] {RS5.1

Mg of 5PYs snonsared by the MBFE tor seountisalion transaction 2 £l
~okal amount & securitisad assets as per boaks of the SPs sparsared by Lthe NBFZ as an
thr cate of balance shaet BG2,61,265 50, 56,44, 746
Tokal ampuat of exposares resained by thee NBFC Lo carnoly with MAR as on Lhe date of
zalarce sheot
QIT-balance shaet axposune
First loss - -
Others - -
Cr-zalance shenk exposaras
First iass 4,72,35,317 1£,55,97,250
CTers -
Amount af axposcres Lo sacurltisatan trarsactions olhar than MRR
CT-Dalance shesl expasuares
ExpasL g Tn mwr securilisations
First 255
Crtnars -
Fxpasure Lo tird party sacuribisations
First loss - -
Citharg - -
Cr-balgnce shaet axposures
Cxpusure Lo awn secunbsations
F-sT loss 9,43,25,.742 0,83,72,655
OLhers - -
Exaosdre b third party secartisalions
First loss - -
athers s
patalls of assignment transactions undertaken:
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
—— [Rs.} [R=.1
Wambnr of Bocounis Ti.450

Angragate vale (et of provision ) af accounts soid

sogragats cansideation

sdzitaral consideration reallzed In reszest of accounts transfarrad in earier yeas
fopragatn paingoss cver net book value

1,1E,06,05,235
1,16,08,96,235
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Unzecured Advinoes

Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

[R5.]

[RS,]

Fortfolio foans

3.1672.26,980

623671052

Reglsteration obtaingd from othar financial sector regulators:

Regulabor

Registration No, |

Miniziy of Company &Tai-s

WEEOX I WRISSOPLCIZIAEY |

Aaseve Bans OF Indla

E-05, 07083 |

Ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agencias &

March 31, 2020

Particulars

Long term Facilities

Bank Rating

Lang term mon convertible debantures
Hindula Leyiard Finance Limited
Eluedrchard Microfinanze Fund

StichTng Junidics Eiganaar ACTLAM instiutizaal
Microf nanca Enhancement Faclllty Sa, S1CAV-5IF
AAV 508, L

Masala Invastmants 5.4 R
Hatkarm arc Capita! Limited
Magalanes mpaoa, SIL

MFI Grading
Code of conduct assassment Grading

Srcuritlsation S Asslgnment:
Q5HA MFL hMortherr Aoz 2026
PTC SEries AL
PIC 5emins &7

|alkair 1EMA Caplta: 2017

FTC Beras Al

FIC Seras A%

karther Arc 2018 MF] el x
FIL Srnas Al

FTC Series 42

Northerm Are 2018 MFT 1zarus
ATL Series A1

ATC Saries A2

Mectharn Arc 201E MFD Mautilus
FTC Saries &l

FTC Series A2

Morthern Arc 2018 MEE Tanya
FTE Series AL

FTC Series A2

Martaern &0C 201372019 MFL Humse
PTC Seties AL

(PTC Series AZ
|Mvritl Moceno 07 2018

PTC Series Al

FTC Seres AZ

Rarthern A 2019 Mores Kree
FTC Serias Al

PTC Serias A2

Harthern Arc 2319 MED Tully
FTC Swries A1

PTC Serius A2

Wivrit Derak 06 2012

ATC Saries Al

ITC Saries A2

Hortkern arc 2009 #ED Hilnss
ATC Zeries Al

PTC Saries A2

Mocthern Are 2012 MED Warr
FTC Series Al

PTC Series A2

Merthern Arc 2015 CABSEC
PTC Series AL

|PTC Series &2

March 31, 2019

1CRA BBA (stahle)

1CRA BRD {=able)
1CRA BOD {=abl:)

1CRA RBE (shabla)
1CRA BEE (zhabla)
IR BRB (shabia)
KA BRB (shabia)
RS BAR (staba)

[OZHA M2

Provisioral LCRS & [S0)
Arovisional ICRA DRS4S}

Provisional [CA& & (SO}
Provisional ICRA BR3+[50)

ICRA A+{SD)
1CRA A-(S0)

ICRA ALED)CAA GRD+{50)

1CRA BEE- {Stadle)

1CRA BRE- [Stanle)
1CRA BRE- {Stable)
1CRA GEE- {Stable)
[CAA BBE- (Stable]
[CAA BED- (Stabl]
[CAA BBE- (Stabia]

[CRA M2+
ICRA C2

[CaA A- (20
[C2A BBE+(3D)

[CAA A- [50]
[CRA 2BE-(50)

ICRA #- (50)
ICRA B3E+(50}

ICRA A= (50)
ICRA BRA4(50]

[CRA A- (53)
ICRA BBE+{50)

TCAA A (50}
ICRA BEB+(50)

ICRA ALSO])
[CRA BEB+(50)
[CR, =[50
[CRA BEE(SC)

ICHA A-{50
LECHA BE(S0)

Provigioral IO, A-(S0)

“rovisianal 1CRA BEE-[S0])

Providion and Continencies
(Braak up of * Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure

Profit and Loss Account

In
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Fraw zian far standard and non pRMorming assels
Frovizian made mwends income Lax

Ctner provisizn and Canlingencies {with details)
a} Fravsion far Grazdity

b} Provision far Leave Benafil

oy Provision far managed porifolio lzans

A1 Pravzan Tor sthar recaivables

a] Prowizion for advarcs recoverabls in cashf<ins

13,7147 155
11,34,84 571

1,36,41,641
164,07, 234
74,52,131

A5

A

4,03,10,211
12,40,44,065

L4007 839
BS, 84 494
3,37,4392

764,330
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Concentration of Advances, exposures and NEA'S :

Particulars
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
[Ra.} (A5}
Concentration of Advances
Tatal dvances Lo beanty largast bomrowers 19,71,038 11,7339
Parcentage of advanoes Lo DeenTy largast Dormowess trotal edvances 0.02% 0.02%
Concentration of Exposuras
Total Exposdras ma bwenty argas borrowers customers 15,711,039 11,73,391
Percantage of Exposyres 1o bwenty |Brgest Dorrowes J customens ta total Expasure .02% 0.02%
Concentration of NPAS
Taotal Exposures to top four BEA Accounts 2, 15066 2.03,249
Secbpr-wise NPAS ; =

Parcentage of NPAS to Total Advances in that sechor

(\Clasirg balance

Sector
; March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1) Agriculture & allied sclvilias 2,500 0.23%
iy MSME 1.96%: 2.51%
11} Cnrporele Dorrowars L 3
) SErvices 3.04% 0.DB%)
) Unsecdres peesang! 10315 i =
Wil AULD anrns = =
wil] Other gerscnal loans = -
Movement of MPA !
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
! [R5} [RS5-1
Mk LFA bz Met Advances (%) 1.13% 0.23%
ravermant of M2AS [Groses)
Jpening Dalance 3,25,70,399 4,0E,95,325
additions during Lhe yoar 20,31,50,755 1.06,36,332
Rpductans cuning the year {rearesents izan aorllzis writtan-aif) 3.25,42,184 4,56,53,259
Closing Lalgnce 20,31,78,870 3,25,70,353
Mowament of MPAE (het)
Dpaning balaroe 1,46,79,223 50,585,591
adosans during Tha year 66,5153 1,35,38,773
wuction during tna year 12,05, 54,694) 4,33,141
(Zasing balance 10,18,35,440 1,46,29,223
sovenent of provisions for MPAs (exduding prosisions on standsrd essets)
Oaening talance 1,79,42,176 2,585,008, 738
Frowislan made during £he year 13,654,399, 332 1,58,61,55%
wirma-alfy wribe bacs of auoess provisons 5,30,4E,970 2,44,30,118
10,13 43,430 | 1,75.41,176

Cystomar Complaints :

— Parlicualrs
Mo, of compleints pancong el the beginning of the year
Ho, of complaints recelvad during Lhe year
K, af complainls regressed curng Le year

1

43 10

40 11
]

March 31, 3020 March 31, 2019

g, of comalaints peadirg 24 712 and of e vear

Tha Company hes 3 Customer Grievance Radressal Mechanlsm far convenience of pesarrars 1o reglster thair com

retrass tem.
The showe iAformation is a5 certfles by the managament and relied upon by tha audiless,

Frauds
Infarmeation an Instanees o fradd for the year ended March 31, 2020:

slalnts and for Company Lo mznitor and

{ Bs..J.I

No. of Amount of Amount!

Mature of fraud ol Fegad Ragcovery Considered as recoverable Pravided for.

Casl embezy smerl EE] 13,7257 515,395 15,457 841,736 |

Irfarrration ar instances of [-aud for the yeas ancad Marck 31, 2019;

(RE.]

Mo, of Amount of | Amaunt

|Natum of fraud 5 | fraud | Racovery | Considered as recoverable proviged far
Cash enbazzlement 30] 18,411,626 | 10.56,507 | 707,330 77,689
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Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 301003E/E300005

par Bhaswar Sarkar

Partner

Managing Diredtaor
Membership Mo.: Q55556 DIM 0331453
o ek

Flace: Kolkata
Dbz June 26, 2020

Public disclosure on Liguidity risk managemeant

i. Funding concantration based on significant counterparty {both deposils and borrowings)

Number of significant counter parties % of  total|% aof  total
deposits liabilities
T A, M

ii. Tap 20 large deposits {amcunt in Rs. crore ang % of total deposits) - Not Applicable. The Company being a Systemically

Important Mon-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financizl Company, MFT registersd with Reserve Bank of Indla ang dess not aceept public
deposits.

iii. Toz 10 borrawings (amount in 25, <rore and % of total berrowings)

|_ Amount [Rs, in croral [%% of total barrowings
B10.05 | A9.59% |
iw, Funding concentration hased an signilicant insktrument / oroduc: *
MName of the Instrument / product Amount (RS, in crora) %y of total liahilitles

Tarm loan fram hanks 170,31 19. 545

Non-Converible debentures d21.00 26, 83%
191.71 21.949%,

Term loan from Men banking Financial Companies |

Term [pans from finangial institutisns 24.00 2.75%

|External commercial barrowings 95,25 11.39%

v. Stock matios

Particulars a5 a %o of total public funds |as a % of total liabilities [as a % of total
assets

Commercial papers MA N& MNA

MNen-convertible debentures {original rmaturily of

less than one year) MA | HA A

Cther short term lishilities A | MA A

vi. Institutional set-up for ligquidity risk
managemant
The Company's Board of Oirectos's has the overall responsibility of management of liquidity risk. The Board decides the strategic

policias 2nd procedures of the Company to manage liquidity risk in accordance with the sk tolarance/limits decided by i,

The Campany 2lso has a Risk management Committes, which is a sub-committee of the Board and is responsible for evaluating the
awverall risk faced by the Campany Including liguidity risk.

Asset Liahility Management Commitbee (ALCOY of the Cormpany is respansible ensuring adherence to the sisk tolerance/limits as weall
4= implementing the Equidity risk management strategy of the Company.

*MNotes
1A *signilicant counkerparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or alfilizled counterpartios accounting in
agyregate far more than 1% of the NRFZ-NDSIs, MBFC-De botal bahilities and 10% for obher non-deposit taking MEFCS.

2. A "significant inslrement/preduct” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in
agorenate amount to more than 1%: of the NGFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total llabilities and 10%: for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

3. Total lighililies has been computed as sum of all labilities (Balance Sheet figure) less Equities and Reserve/Surplus,

4, "Public funds® shall include funds ralsed either directly or indirectly through public deposits, commercial paper, debentures, inter-
corporate deposits and bank finance but excludes funds mised by issue of instruments compulsosly convertible into equity shares
within o peried of exceeding 10 years from Lhe date of issue as defined in Regulatory Framework for Core Investment issued vide
Notification Ma. DMBS (PR} CC, No, 206/03.10.001/2010-11 dated Jaruary 5, 2011,

5. The amaunt stated in Lhis disclosure is basad on the audited financial slatements for the year ended March 31, 2020,

Pravious year figures
Frevious year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, te conform to this year's classificabon.

."’-.".

i b
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ASA International India Microfinance Limited

%LM I'-ukx?{ e,

ﬂnjleD;:sgu ta

Subhrangsu Chakravarty
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secrebary




	During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Board met nine times, i.e; June 06, 2019, June 27, 2019, 05.08.2019,02.09.2019, 19.09.2019, 26.09.2019, 30.09.2019, 11.11.2019, 21.01.2020. The Board also approved various businesses during circular resolution...

